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Chairman'’s
Message

| am pleased to present our Board Annual Report
for Tanweer (Rural Area Electricity Company) for
the financial year ending 31st December 2019. The
report will also portray the development and work
progress of Tanweer projects in the Sultanate of
Oman.

During the past year, the Board of Directors and
the Executive Management urged Tanweer (Rural
Area Electricity Company) to develop and meet the
electricity and water desalination requirements in
the authorized areas. The company seeks to raise
the efficiency of operation, optimal exploitation of
resources, andreach the bestresults, whetherforthe
company and its shareholders or for its customers
who have reached around (41,586) customers. The
board of directors works to achieve Tanweer's
vision to push the economy towards a sustainable

A

green economy and implement Tanweer’s Clean
Energy Strategy which aims to achieve 20% of the
capacity from renewable sources by 2025 to make
the Sultanate of Oman a nation with the least low
carbon footprint.

The Company’s Performance in 2019

Following  the company's numbers and
achievements in 2019, one can observe the
significant growth in all its business and activities,
and its role in meeting the needs of its customers
of power efficiently and reliably. Tanweer plans
to implement huge projects which coincide with
national plans to reduce dependency on liquid fuel
and diesel to generate electrical energy and divert
the trend towards renewable energy sources.

The company achieved total revenues of R.O.
139.7M in 2019 compared to R.O. 125.6M in 2018,
an increase of about 11.2% due to the increase in
the number of customers by 4.6% and the increase
in electricity consumption by 3%. The operating
expenses increased to 106M in 2019 compared
to R.O. 125.6M in 2018, due to the following two
reasons:

1. Increase in electricity purchased by 12.8%. This
is due to the increase in the cost of purchase
tariffs from the Oman Power and Water
Procurement Company (OPWP).

2. Increase in fuel cost consumption by 2.3% from
2018.

The increase in operating expenses led to the
higher unit cost of electricity and thus increased
subsidy.

The company achieved a profit after tax of R.O.
4M. This is due to the continued development
in operational performance, human resource
capability and commitment to using the latest
technologies in the company systems.
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Quality, Health, Safety & Environment

Tanweer continues its efforts to developing work,
improving performance and achieving public
safety, occupational health, and the environment.
We also ensure all company stakeholders
including employees, consultants, contractors, and
suppliers are aware of the latest regulations, major
developments and best practices in occupational
health and safety. This will allow achieving the
highest levels of quality, through continuous
training, exchanging knowledge and experiences,
discussing mechanisms and methods for upgrading
health and safety systems of human cadres as well
as ways to improve production and operational
efficiency and sustainability.

Tanweer deeply regrets the occurrence of death
that occurred in the company’s authorized area
in Musandam with one of our contractors. The
worker fell from a height of approximately 5 meters
during his work on connecting the electrical line to
a residential property. The company did not record
any Lost Time Injury (LTI) in 2019 and the number of

Pl reports was 5,618.

Future Vision

Tanweer continuously strives to become a global
role model in energy efficiency and reliability as it
supports the transition towards a green economy,
promoting sustainability. The company prepared its
five-year plan (2019 - 2023) focusing on developing
renewable energy projects. In  November
2019, Tanweer achieved major milestones and
developments in renewable energy following the
commercial operation of the Dhofar Wind Energy
Project (50 MW) in Fatkhait (Wilayat Shalim and
Halaniyat Islands). Furthermore, the company
received the 2019 Asia Energy Award for Best Wind
Energy Project.
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The global energy consultancy company “The
Energy” has also ranked Tanweer fourth place
out of the 5 best companies in hybrid energy
implementation. Tanweer has identified 11
locations within its concession areas and is striving
hard on executing the solar-distributed generation
projects. Moreover, the company has completed
the rooftop photovoltaic solar system at Muscat
headquarters.

Regulatory Price Control

With reference to the law promulgated by Royal
Decree, the Special Economic Zone Authority for
Dugm has been granted the authority to exercise
the powers of the authority for Electricity and Water
regulation issued by Royal Decree No. 78/2004
within the limits of the economic area under its
administration.

From the beginning of 2020, Tanweer will deal with
both the Electricity Regulatory Authority of Oman
(AER) and the Special Economic Zone Authority in
Dugm (SEZAD) to serve customers in each of their
authorized areas.

By the end of 2019, Tanweer, in cooperation with
the AER and SEZAD, completed a review of the
price control monitoring plan (2018-2021), and it
also completed the price control mechanism and
the requirements of operating cost (OPEX) and
capital expenditure (CAPEX) were determined for
period 2020-2021.
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Human Resources

The total number of employees reached 456 as
of December 31, 2019, of which 437 are Omani
employees, 19 expatriates, and 17 staff appointed
to the Distribution Code Review Panel (DCRP).
The Omanization rate achieved was 96% and the
company continues to develop a capable and
talented Omani workforce that will contribute to
the strength of the nation.

Operational Highlights

e Total customers increased by 4.6% from 39,773
in 2018 to 41,586 in 2019.

e The Electricity sent to customers increased to
3% in 2019 compared to 2018.

e The company continues to improve and develop
its compliance with the regulations and license
conditions, with continued cooperation with the
Authority Electricity Regulatory (AER) and the
Electricity Holding Company (Nama Group) and
other relevant stakeholders within the company.

Thanks & Gratitude

We realize that the road is still long and what
has been achieved is only a step from a pool
of ambitions, goals, and aspirations of the
Board of Directors, who embrace the plans and
accomplishments of the executive management
and employees, supporting them to reach the
best global standards, providing reliable and safe
electrical service to subscribers under our national
government.

We also offer our sincere condolences on the
death of His Majesty Sultan Qaboos bin Saeed bin
Taimur, may God bless him with His mercy and rest
him in the abodes of the pious and righteous in
Paradise.

A

On behalf of the members of the Board of Directors
and workers in Tanweer, | would like to express
congratulations and blessings to His Majesty Sultan
Haitham bin Tarig, on the occasion of receiving
the reins of government in Oman. We ask God to
grant him the strength in continuing the reforms
and development, marching towards a prosperous
future for this nation and for every citizen of this
blessed country.

In conclusion, we would like to thank and greatly
appreciate all employees of Tanweer Company for
their continuous efforts to enhance the company'’s
status, and to our shareholders who have given us
the confidence and responsibility, motivating us
to perform the utmost potentials to achieving the
company's goals, strategies, and aspirations.

Faisal Khamis Al-Hashar
Chairman



A

CEQO'’s
Message

Tanweer is steadily moving towards a better
future, orienting its ambition to achieve a vision
of greener energy while employing strength and
determination from the capabilities of our human
resources, promoting our values of teamwork,
respect, integrity, quality, professionalism and
customer focus.

By commissioning of Dhofar Wind Plant Tanweer
is moving in a straight direction on our promising
mission of enabling development in our
concession areas through providing sustainable
and green energy.
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The company continues its development on the
11 sites Solar-Diesel Hybrid Project. The feasibility
study of this project was completed in 2018
demonstrating considerable diesel fuel savings
and reduction in O&M costs. This is done by
implementing a hybrid Solar PV and Diesel system
at 11 of Tanweer's existing Power Plants with a
total PV capacity of 37MWp and 28MW of battery
storage capacity. procurement process was started
in 2019.

Moreover, since the beginning of 2019, Tanweer has
been dealing with both the Electricity Regulatory
Authority of Oman (AER) and the Special
Economic Zone Authority in Dugm (SEZAD) to
serve customers in each of their authorized areas.
With reference to the law promulgated by Royal
Decree, the Special Economic Zone Authority for
Dugm has been granted the authority to exercise
the powers of the authority for Electricity and Water
regulation issued by Royal Decree No. 78/2004
within the limits of the economic area under its
administration.

Quality, Health, Safety & Environment
(QHSE)

The company continues to maintain a healthy and
safe place of work for all its employees, as well
as taking all reasonable steps to ensure that the
public and environment are exposed to the lowest
practicable level of risk. In 2019 Tanweer attained
zero restricted work case and LTI, 1 medical
treatment ,5.618 Pl reports and 1 fatality.

Tanweer implementing its HSE strategic plan
which started in 2018 moving forward to 2021 with
initiatives including the following:
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*  Establishing the HSE Consultative Committee,
chaired by CEO, to involve contractors
and all levels of staff in safety performance
improvement.

* Enhancing HSE training plan, including
Leadership Behavior Based Safety program.

* Introducing Regional Assessment Panels to
improve operational authorization process.

*  Holding Safety Stand Down Events in all
regions to reinforce safety culture among staff
and contractors

To our Customers....

Your satisfaction with our services is what motivates
us to excel in providing energy and customer
services that exceed your expectations. We are
proud to announce that Tanweer customers have
increased in number more than 4%, from 39,773 in
2018 to 41,586 in 2019. In 2019 Tanweer achieved
94% in customer satisfaction performance.

To Tanweer’s Employees ....

Your continuous hard work and efforts are
appreciated and have resulted in the company’s
2019 remarkable achievements. We made it
clear in Tanweer that one of our main objectives
is to focus on our people by enhancing their
skills and knowledge through better training
and development. This in turn will reflect on the
company by improving business performance,
employee capabilities and morale. Furthermore,
Tanweer honored its employees for their completed
ten Lean projects in 2019 which aim to develop
more efficient mechanisms and improve overall
work productivity.
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In 2019 we continue our seven strategic objectives
which are supported by fifteen initiatives to
meet our commitments towards our customers,
employees, shareholders, and partners in the
electricity sector. The following are our objectives
and business initiatives for 2019:

Objective 1: Develop & Engage Staff

Objective 2: Embed A Positive Hse Culture
& Deliver Continual Improvement In Safety
Performance

Objective 3: Maximize Business Performance
Efficiency

Objective 4: Maximize Shareholder Value And
Meet Financial Targets

Objective 5: Enhance Customer Experience And
Achieve Regulatory Targets

Objective 6: Engage Effectively With Key
Stakeholders:

Objective 7: Maximize Renewable Energy Sources
Implementation

To our Shareholders ....

We will continue to take advantage of your valuable
guidance, to support us in achieving our objectives
and fulfill our mission of contributing in the
development of our nation. We will also continue
our progress in providing services of excellence to
satisfy our shareholders and customers, maximizing
the benefit for all.
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Financial Affairs......

Tanweer's profit after tax in 2019 amounted to
4.8 million RO due to the intuitive that where
implemented during 2019. . Electricity sales
increased by 3% from 2018 and the Power
Procurement from OPWP had increased by 12.8%.
The number of customers had also increased to
41,586, a 4.6% increase compared to 2018.

Customers and Supply....

The energy supplied to Tanweer customers reached
1,102 GWh in 2019 compared with 1,073GWh in
2018. Tanweer seeks to enhance its reputation and
connect with customers by enhancing customer
experience and increasing electricity consumption
rationalization. The company has also expanded
its collection channels by providing convenient
billing options, giving access to customers through
mobile applications and websites as well as access
to customer invoices through mobile phone links
and answering enquiries through the call center.

Projects and assets ....

The company has successfully passed the ISO 55001
quality control audit for the asset management
system. The GIS field survey and data collection for
all Tanweer desalination and power plants, as well
as the electrical network assets and geographical
coordinates have been completed. Several other
projects have also been completed to improve
electricity delivery and distribution services in
all Tanweer's licensed areas. Moreover, the total
Tanweer's asset increased by 26%, from 422 million
RO in 2018 to 533 million RO in 2019.
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Human Resources....

Tanweer practiced the objectives of restructuring
process which done in 2018. The company also
managed to conduct several training programs in
deferent technical and managerial and maintained
96% of Omanisation within 2019.

Thanks, and appreciation ....

I would like to thank the Chairman and the members
of the Board for their support and guidance in
overcoming the challenges Tanweer has faced.
Furthermore, | would like to take this opportunity
to sincerely thank the management team and our
employees for their dedication and diligent efforts
in achieving the goals of the company. Appreciation
is also extended to our partners, contractors,
suppliers and service providers for their services
and products that have had a significant impact on
the company’s operations. Finally, | offer my sincere
gratitude to the Ministry of Oil & Gas, Electricity
Regulatory Authority, Special Economic Zone of
Dugm, the Public Authority of Water, the Electricity
Holding Company and the sector for their ongoing
support and valuable guidance.

Eng. Saleh Bin Nasser Al-Rumhi
Chief Executive Officer

Executive Management

Team

Ghudayyer Rashid
Said AL Waheibi
(Chief Operating Officer)

Hamood Basheer
Said Al Mangi

(Senior Human
Resource Manager)

Salim Abdullah
Al Humaidi

(Corporate Services Senior Manager)

Salman Tarique

(Commercial Affairs
Senior Manager)

Ahmed Said
Al Harthy
(Chief Supply Officer)

Tariq Riaz Khan

(Senior Manager of
Business & Asset Planning)

Robert Booth
(Senior Manager of QHSE)




FAISAL KHAMIS
AL-HASHAR

(Chairman)

SALEEM AHMED

ABDULLATIF

B o a rd of (Deputy Chairman)
Directors

MR.
SULIMAN SALIM
AL-ADI
(Board Member)

Corporate AR
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Governance e

MR. MOHAMMED
AHMED AL-BRASHDI
(Board Member)
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Corporate
Governance

The Board of Directors of Tanweer (Rural Areas
Electricity Company SAOC) are committed to
maintaining the highest standards of Corporate
Governance. Tanweer has designed its Corporate
Governance policy and procedure to ensure that
the company is focused on its responsibilities
to its stakeholders and is creating long term
shareholder value. The company recognizes
the interests of all its stakeholders including
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers and
the communities in which it operates. Tanweer's
corporate governance framework is committed to
the highest standards of business integrity, ethical
values, and professionalism.

Board of Directors & Committees

The Board of Directors is accountable to the
shareholders for the governance of the company.
All' Directors are accountable for the proper
stewardship of the company’s affairs and share a
responsibility in ensuring the highest standards of
disclosure and reporting, ethics and integrity.

Powers specifically reserved for the Board

include:

» Providing direction and guidance to the
company in the formulation of its strategies
and in the pursuance of its operational and
financial goals.

P Monitoring systems of governance and
compliance.
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Overseeing systems of internal control and risk
management.

Approving major acquisitions & disposals and
capital expenditure.

Reviewing HR processes with emphasis on top
management succession planning.

v v v VY

Approving annual budgets and strategic plans.

Subcommittees of the Board

The Board is responsible for the establishment
and monitoring of the functioning of all Sub
Committees, the appointing of members to these
committees and compensation payable to them.
The Board has delegated responsibilities to four
subcommittees namely, (1) Tender Committee, (2)
Internal Audit Committee, (3) Human Resources
Committee and (4) Capital Investment Committee.

1. Tender Committee (TC)

The Tender Committee is comprised of two
directors fromthe Board and four members from the
management team viz: the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Operation Officer, Chief Supply Officer, and
Commercial Affairs Senior Manager. The functional
heads attend meetings by invitation. The main
function of the Tender Committee is to obtain the
most favorable terms for the procurement of goods
and services required for the main activities of the
company on the principles of competitiveness,
transparency and team decision making.

2. Internal Audit Committee (IAC)

The Internal Audit Committee comprises of three
directors from the Board. The functional heads
attend meetings by invitation. IAC covers the
principles governing financial reporting, internal
control and the management of risks, both financial
and operational.
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3. Human Resources Committee (HRC)

The Human Resources Committee comprises of two directors of the Board and two
members from the management team viz: the Chief Executive Officer and the Human
Resources Senior Manager. The functional heads attend meetings by invitation. HRC
ensures successful implementation of HR policies and that all matters related to
employees are conducted in a fair and transparent manner. The committee also reviews
and approves the corporate Performance Management Standard (PMS).

4. Capital Investment Committee (CIC)

CIC is a committee comprising of two directors of the Board and three members from the management
team viz: the Chief Executive Officer, Senior Manager of Business & Asset Planning and Commercial Affairs
Senior Manager. The Committee is assigned by the Board of Directors to authorize Capital Investments
related to the following categories:

Generation capacity requirements that exceed 10MW.

Desalination capacity requirements that exceed 5000 m3/day.

Renewable energy investments.

132kV & 33kV networks investments.

Customer extensions and 11 kV and LT load-related/non-load related investments of OMR 1 million
and above.

Any other Capital Investment Project, of investments of OMR 1 million and above.

Agree on procurement strategy for each Pre-Investment Appraisal document (PIAD) that falls under
the scope of CIC.

VY VVVvYVYY
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Board Of Directors’ Meetings
Table (1) & Table (2) below present all Board of Director’s meetings held in 2018 & 2019

Table 1: 2019 Board of director’s meetings schedule

Name of the Board Members Position No.of meeting BM CIC IAC TC HRC Sitting
Attended Fees
H.E. SHK. Faisal Khamis Al Hashar | Chairman 6 J J J 5,500
. Deputy
Eng. Saleem Ahmed Abdullatif Chairman 5 J J J 4,300
SHK. Mansor Talib Al Hinai Member 5 J J J 2,800
Mr. Suleiman Salim Al Adi Member 6 J J | 4,200
Mr. Mohammed Ahmed Al Brashdi| Member 6 J J 3,900
Total Directors Remuneration for 2019 20,700

Table 2: 2018 Board of director’s meetings schedule

No.of o

Name of the Board Members Position meeting BM CIC IAC TC HRC Sllzttmg

ees

Attended
H.E. SHK. Faisal Khamis Al Hashar | Chairman N | J J 5,685
. Deputy

Eng. Saleem Ahmed Abdullatif Chairman 12 J J J 5,035
SHK. Mansor Talib Al Hinai Member 18 J J J 6,700
Mr. Suleiman Salim Al Adi Member 19 J J J 7,100
Mr. Mohammed Ahmed Al
Brashdi Member 7 J J 3,100
Total Directors Remuneration for 2018 27,620

About Us
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About Us

Rural Areas Electricity Company (Tanweer) was established pursuant to the promulgation of the Sector
Law 78/ 2004 to serve remote areas that could not be economically connected to the main electricity grid
of Oman (MIS). Tanweer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Electricity Holding Company SAOC (Nama
Holding - NHC) which owns 100% of the shares. In turn, NHC is 100% owned by the Government of the
Sultanate of Oman. Tanweer’s license, issued by the Authority for Electricity Regulation (AER) covers
its authorized areas which include the Governorates of Musandam, Al Wusta, part of Al Dakhliyah,& Al
Shargiah and most of Dhofar.
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Objectives

The company'’s key objectives are listed in the table below:

Table 3: Strategic objectives

Focus Area

Finance

Strategic Objectives

Maximize shareholder value and meet financial targets

Stakeholders & Compliance

Comply with stakeholders, regulatory and statutory requirements

Technical Performance

Maximize business performance efficiency

Customer Service

Enhance customer experience and achieve regulatory targets

Human Resources

Develop and engage staff to meet the skills gap

HSE & Sustainability

Embed a positive work culture and deliver safety performance

Renewable Energy

Maximize renewable energy sources implementation

Tanweer License

SECTOR LAW AND AER REGULATION

Vision

Going Greener by
Achieving 20% of The
Capacity From Renewable
Source by 2025

Mission

Enabling Development
of The Service Areas by
Providing Sustainable
Electricity And Water If Safe,
Reliable & Efficient
Manner

Licenced Power

Power Distribution Power

Generation Procurement Transmission & Supply Customers

Licenced
Generation
Companies

Tanweer ’

Tanweer _’J

Tanweer ’ Water Desalination

MEDC

MJEC Domestic,

Commercial,
& Other
Customers

MZEC

DPC
Tanweer

Tanweer ’ Tanweer ’




Coverage
Map

Since 2005 Tanweer has undertaken major
programs of electrification in the Governorates of
Musandam, Dhofar, and Al Wusta (also including
Al Dakhliyah, Al Dahirah, and Shargiyah) which
covers almost 73% of the land area of Oman. The
company established 51 diesel fuel power plants
by 2010 and by 2019 interconnected some of these
areas to improve efficiency and reduced the power
plants to 31 in number. The total installed capacity
has increased to 416 MW by the end of 2019.

The company operates six desalination plants (3
of them combined with power plant sites) which
supply bulk desalinated water to the Public
Authority of Water (PAW). Some remote areas
are close to the infrastructure of PDO (Petroleum
Development of Oman) and power is provided by
connection of Tanweer customers to nearby PDO
networks.
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Renewable
Energy

Farshat
Qatbeet

Dhofar Wind
Plant

Al Khuwaimah
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One of the 7 corporate strategic objectives
is  “Maximizing Renewable Energy Sources
Implementation.” The Measure of this strategic
objective is to implement RE projects. Accordingly,
the initiatives are:

» 11 Sites Solar-Diesel Hybrid Project

e A feasibility study was completed in 2018 by
Tanweer with collaboration with the technical
advisor DNV.GL. Thisdemonstrated considerable
diesel fuel savings and reduction in O&M costs
by implementing a hybrid solar PV and diesel
system at 11 of Tanweer’s existing Power Plants.
These locations were chosen on the basis of
them being very remote from the nearest main
grid, and unfeasible to interconnect to other
Tanweer power plants.

e Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) was also
assessed in the study and results indicated
strong benefits by adding BESS to optimize
energy dispatch and operation of the hybrid
system.

e Tanweer floated a request for Expression of
Interest in June 2018 and received responses
from 97 companies

e The approval of the project scope and
procurement process was received from AER in
July 2019, following which the project was issued
for tendering as an IPP development (RFP issued
15th Dec 2019).

e The financial bidder selection and evaluation are
expected by quarter 3 of 2020 (subject to AER
approval).

e The construction timeline for all 11 sites is 24
months.  The total PV capacity to be installed
at the 11 sites is 37MWp with 28MW of battery
storage capacity.
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» Dhofar Wind Plant (50MW):

Tanweer signed an agreement with Abu Dhabi Future Energy Company (Masdar) to develop Dhofar
wind power project with a total installed capacity of 50MW, connected to the OETC south grid.

The wind project was commissioned on 15th November 2019, consisting of 13 wind turbines (3.8 MW
each wind turbine — GE Technology)

The project is located in Fatkhait - Dhofar Governorate)
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» Al Mazyunah Solar Plant:

This was a pilot project aimed to identify key obstacles and opportunities associated with the
deployment of similar projects in the future.

Tanweer signed a 20-year PPA for a 307kWp PV power plant.

The plant consists of two PV technologies, Polycrystalline and Thin-film.

The PV power plant contains a total of 1,617 modules, 31 inverters and covers an area of 8,000 m2.

Quality,
Health, Safety
& Environment

(QHSE)
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Quality, Health, Safety &
Environment(QHSE)

Throughout 2019 Tanweer continued to deliver planned initiatives aimed at achieving our goal of ‘Zero
Harm to persons, property and the natural environment’, a summary of which is illustrated in Table 4,
below;

Table 4: Quality, Health, Safety & Environment initiatives

Focus Area Initiative

Working at Height New Standard Operating Procedure was introduced, including the
requirement for powered access equipment to be provided for overhead
line works in all-new EEMS contracts.

Driver & Vehicle Safety Improved monitoring/reporting of driver behavior through the installation
of the Integrated Vehicle Management System (IVMS) continues to
reduce incidences of dangerous driving.

Operational Safety The annual audit of compliance with Electrical Safety Rules and
Operational Procedures was undertaken during Q3, recording continued
improvement in levels of compliance.

Contractor Performance | Review of contract HSE performance criteria (inc clear pass/fail criteria
introduced for evaluation of new tenders). Improved HSE Minimum
Standards for Contractors was also introduced.

Awareness & Culture Safety Stand-Down workshops held in all regions, covering proactive
measures and learning points from previous sector incident investigations.

Quality Introduction of a new Document Management System in preparation for
ISO2001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018 assessment (to be carried out in 2020)

Environment An assessment of Tanweer's Environmental Management systems was
conducted in preparation for ISO 14001:2015 application

Competency Safety Competency Passport Scheme was developed and approved, to
enable on-site verification of staff HSE training and qualification.
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In addition to the planned initiative, the QHSE team conducted audits of customers’ meter boxes in
all regions, identifying a number of safety improvement measures that are being implemented by our
Customer Services and Operations divisions.

In collaboration with the Authority for Electricity Regulation (AER), Tanweer carried out an electrical safety
inspection of over 300 water coolers installed in public places such as schools and mosques. Over 90
of the appliances inspected were found to have potentially dangerous defects and were disconnected
pending repair and re-test.

Safety Performance

Whilst the overall number of serious incidents continue to follow a positive downward trend, one of our
contract staff sadly incurred a fatal accident during works being undertaken on behalf of Tanweer. The
root causes of the incident, a fall from a height that occurred in Khasab, Musandam Governate on 1
October 2019, was thoroughly investigated by a panel of senior managers and significant improvements
in safety management and supervision have subsequently been implemented. Table 5 displays the QHSE
performance comparing the years 2017-2019.

Table 5: QHSE Performance (2017-2019)

Component 2017 2018 2019
Fatality 1 0 1
Lost time injury 3 1 0
Total Man- Hours worked 7,000,000 4,249,942 3,732,610
LTIFR (lost Time Injury Frequency Rate) 9 2 0.26
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Fetality

Lost Time Injury

Restricted Work Case

Medical Treatment Case

First Aid Case

In order to identify and improve levels of HSE compliance on our work sites, Tanweer management and
supervisory staff conducted over 400 'Active Monitoring’ site visits in 2019. During these visits, our
managers and supervisors were able to ensure immediate rectification of observed hazards, plus a further
115 significant corrective and preventative actions were subsequently implemented.

Active monitoring site visits 2019
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Table 6 A: Financial & operational highlights 2017-2019

Key Highlights

Unit

2017

Balance Sheet Highlights and Ratios
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Earning Highlights and Ratios

Total Assets (RO’ 000) 382,503 421,571 532,897
Net Asset Per Share RO 269 281.56 266.774
Current Assets Over Current Liability % 31 132.4 96.7
Quick Asset Over Current Liability % 27 121 85
Fixed Assets Over Total liability % 133 118 106

Revenue (RO’ 000) 105,362 125,666 139,748
Total Revenue/MWh Supplied RO 115 117 127
Gross Profit Over Sales Ratio % 23 25 24
Net Profit Over Sales Ratio % 5 8 3
Return on Capital Employed % 9 5 5
Return on Equity % 4 7.18 3.58
Operating Cost Over Sales Ratio % 77 75 76
Admin Cost Over Sales Ratio % 15 13 12
Total Cost Over Sales Ratio % 99 93 100
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Table 6 B: Financial & operational highlights 2017-2019

Key Highlights

Unit

2017

Other Operational Highlights and Ratios

Total Number of Customers Number 37,513 39,773 41,586
Total Number of New Customers Number 2,055 2,260 1,813
*Total Number of Employees Number 466 461 457
Electricity Generated at Tanweer power plants MWh 831,949 773,211 791,486
Electricity Sent from Tanweer power plants MWh 776,732 728,754 748,396
Power Purchased (PDO & Tibat IPP) MWh 315,596 484,377 548,529
Total Power Supplied to Customers MWh 913,969 1,072,950 1,101,589
Total Losses (Technical & Non-Technical) % 16.3 11.69 14.69
Total Water Production m3 3,566,944 | 3,663,004 3,643,626
Total Water Dispatched (Sent Out) m3 3,363,470 | 3,324,219 3,396,136

*Note: The figure includes 17 staff number of the Distribution Code Review Panel.
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Financial and Operational
Highlights

Figure 1: Financial and operational data (2016-2019)
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Figure 2: Omanisation in each function %

Human Resources

105%

Everyone in Tanweer contributes their unique personal skills so that together the company produces 100% 999 100% 100%
excellent performance in all areas of its business. Our shared values encompass a common sense of 100% 96%
public commitment and a strong sense of duty to the community. One of the company’s main objectives 95% 999,
is to develop a capable and talented Omani workforce that contributes to the strength of the nation. By 0% i £ _
December 2019 the number of directly employed staff reached 457 employees. The figure includes 17 full- - 85%
time staff appointed to the Distribution Code Review Panel (which supports standards and specifications
work for all sector companies). The following table and figures show the number of staff in each category, 80%
the Omanisation percentage, and the functional staff distribution. 75%
General Operations and Managers of Deputy Engineers  Technicians Skilled Distribution ~ Omanisation
managers  maintenance administration managers and manpower Code Reviews
and deputies managers of  and finance head of sections Panel Staff
. . technical (DCRP)
Table 7: Number of Omani & Non-Omani staff 2019 departments

Omani Staff Expatriate Staff

Job Category

2. D, Figure 3: Functional staff distribution
General managers and deputies 1 0
Operationsand maintenance managers oftechnical departments 11 2 250
203
Managers of administration and finance 14 2 200
Deputy managers and head of sections 55 7 e
100
Engineers 71 6 62 77 68
50 16 17
Technicians 67 1 1 13 .
— [ | [ | [ |
- General Operations and Managers of Deputy Engineers  Technicians Skilled Distribution
Skilled I RORAET 202 1 managers  maintenance administration managers and manpower Code Reviews
and deputies managers of  and finance head of sections Panel Staff
Distribution Code Review Panel Staff (DCRP) 17 0 technical (DCRP)
departments
Total Direct Employees 438 19
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Skills, Qualifications & Training

Tanweer considers training and development for its staff as one of its main priorities. Tanweer provided
scholarships for selected staff as part of their development plans. Moreover, Tanweer provided 728
other courses covering a range of technical and business skills. It can be observed from Figure (4) that
more than 43% of total Tanweer staff are qualified to Bachelors’s or Masters's level.

Figure 4: Qualification of staff
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Regional Staff Distribution

It can be observed from the figure (5) that 46% of total Tanweer direct staff are located in Muscat Head
Office. The rest is distributed among the authority areas according to the needs and the size of the
network and customer distribution. Customer regional offices are providing direct support to customers
and addressing their needs (21 Offices). In addition, our Emergency Service office, Customer Services
offices and power plants are manned by our contract staff (approximately 1,565 contract staff).

Figure 5: Regional staff distribution
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Creativity Initiative, Employee of the
Month & Honor Committee

Over the past 6 years, Tanweer established a
committee to recognize employee creativity, by
selecting and awarding employees of the month
as well as those who contribute with outstanding
services to the company.

The main objective of an employee recognition
program is to recognize and promote positive
behaviors that support individuals, groups,
divisions, and departments in achieving Tanweer'’s
mission, vision, and values. It also assists in creating
a culture of mutual respect, reward, and recognition
for employees at all levels, improving the overall
employee productivity and quality of work. One

Table 8: 2019 2019 “Lean” Projects
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idea was Rural Area VPN which provides free VPN
usage for all Tanweer staff in different rural areas.
It provides access to all company applications
including GIS, Al Multaga and Oracle, and allows
staff to work out of the office which led to cost
savings. This idea was proposed by IT technician,
Sulaiman Al Mamarey.

The Committee honored employees in 2019 for
their outstanding contributions to the company
including improved customer service procedures
and completed lean projects. Tanweer completed
ten Lean projects in 2019 aiming to develop
more efficient business process mechanisms and
implementing streamlining. The below table shows
the detail of the completed lean projects during
2019.

Project name Objectives
1 | TAT reduction (purchase order approval) 20% reduction in delayed purchase orders approval
2 | Time reduction for spare parts availability | To reduce average operational approval time by 5 days
Re-engi ing high vol horizati : : :
3 te-engineering high voltage authorization | provide an effective re-engineered process
license process
4 | Grievance process To implement effective online grievances system
5 | Spare parts procurement process To improve spare parts delivery time
6 | Business intelligence To implement effective data intelligence
7 | Strengthening "asset management" To implement integrated asset maintenance system
8 | Strengthening project delivery process To optimize project delivery process
9 | Re-designing disconnection process To optimize the process to increase disconnection efficiency.
. . To implement an efficient system to ensure the integrity of all
10 | Portable assets registration mpien e y N integnty
such devices/equipment

Customers
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Customers

Customer Base & Energy Consumption

Tanweer serves electricity customers by supplying power from 31 diesel power stations and some of
its customers are supplied by connections to networks belonging to PDO (Petroleum Development of
Oman). The total number of customers increased by 5%, from 39,773 in 2018 to 41,586 in 2019. Table (9)
presents the 2019 customer data by category and energy consumption.
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Figure 6: Percentage of Tanweer customer by category

80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
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68.4%

30.0% 20.3%
Table 9: Customer category & consumption in 2019 20.0% T
. (]
10.0% 1.4%
0.1% .29 9 0.8%
- : 005 I ° 0.2% 0.2% °
Tariff C Customers EIeCt”CIty Consumptlon Agriculture & Commercial Domestic ~ Government  Industrial Ministry of Tourism CRT
ar ategory fisheries defense
\[o} MWh
Agriculture & Fisheries 595 91,261
CommedE| ERRE Gl Figure 7: Percentage of Tanweer consumption by category
Domestic 28,465 451,612
Government 3,555 102,501
45.0% 41.0%
industrial 37 (185) 40.0%
35.0%
Ministry of Defense 81 41,329 30.0% 26%
. 25.0%
Tourism 68 29,528 20.0%
*CRT 342 290,855 15.0% 5 9.3%
' 10.0% 8.3% 8.6% =70
Total 41,586 1,101,589 5.0% 3.8% 2.7%
5.0% —_—
The above table shows that 68.4% of Tanweer customers are in the domestic category and consume Agriculture & Commercial  Domestic  Government Industrial  Ministry of  Tourism ar

around 41% of the total energy supplied. *CRT customers contribute 26% of the total MWh supplied, and

the total consumption of the remaining categories is around 33%.

*CRT customer includes those subjects to a cost-reflective tariff, mainly commercial, industrial & government customers consuming
more than 150,000 KWh per year.

fisheries

defense
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Regional Distribution of Customers

Table (10) & Figure (8) show the customer distribution by regions and customer category, indicating that
the majority of Tanweer customers are located in Al Wusta and Musandam Governorates with 43% and
38% respectively, while 19% are located in rural areas of Dhofar Governorate.

Table 10: Customer distribution by regions and customer category

Dhofar Musandam Al-Wusta Total
Customer I o I o I o I -
Category Customer E ectnuty Customer E ectnaty Customer E ectnmty Customer E ectnuty
No Consumption No Consumption No Consumption No Consumption
: MWh : MWh : MWh . MWh
Aepitaslize 213 66,723 293 5,176 89 19,362 595 91,261
& Fisheries
Commercial 1,492 12,608 2,809 31,234 4,142 50,847 8,443 94,688
Domestic 4,746 82,610 11,565 173,784 12,154 195,218 28,465 451,612
Government | 1,323 36,808 877 29,235 1,355 36,458 3,555 102,501
industrial 2 ) 7 9 28 (191) 37 (185)
Ministry of
39 1,788 32 18,902 10 20,638 81 41,329
Defense
Tourism - (16) 24 19,069 44 10,475 68 29,528
CRT 89 39,288 104 109,759 149 141,807 342 290,855
Total 7,904 239,806 15,711 387,169 17,971 474,614 41,586 1,101,589
% 19% 22% 38% 35% 43% 43% 100% 100%

Note: Data for (AL WUSTA) includes Masirah island (Shargiyah), Dakhalya, Dhahira governorates.
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Figure 8: Percentage of Tanweer customer & MWh consumption by region

Customer Consumption
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Customers Growth

Overall, the number of Tanweer customers has grown by 4.6% in 2019. Net additions of 1,813 customers
were added to the customer base in 2019. The following table and figure show the growth in customer
accounts over the last 4 years.

Table 11: Growth in the number of customers

Customer Category 2016 2017 2018 2019
Agriculture & Fisheries 443 509 564 595
Commercial 6,640 7,181 7,921 8,443
Domestic 24,570 25,910 27,266 28,465
Government 3,546 3,329 3,420 3,555
industrial 61 35 33 37
Ministry of Defense 132 115 126 81
Tourism 66 67 68 68
CRT - 367 375 342
Total 35,458 37,513 39,773 41,586
% Growth 7 7 6 4.6
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Figure 9: Growth in the number of customers Figure 10: Growth in energy supplied (GWh)
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Growth in Energy Supplied

The energy supplied to Tanweer customers reached 1,102 GWh in 2019 compared with 1,073 GWh in
2018. The table and figure below show the growth in energy supplied per customer category from 2016
to 2019. The growth in 2019 was contributed by an increase of power purchase (Tibat Independent Gas

Plant, PDO & Al Mazyounah) resulting to a consumption of over 500,000 MWh per year.

Table 12: Growth In energy supplied (MWh)

Customer Category 2016 2017 2018 2019
Agriculture & Fisheries 32,833 44 646 90,169 91,261
Commercial 132,921 83,228 96,370 94,688
Domestic 400,437 451,348 450,942 451,612
Government 172,641 91,426 121,014 102,501
industrial 47,467 722 599 (185)
Ministry of Defense 33,539 35,618 41,195 41,329
Tourism 28,829 30,508 29,080 29,528
CRT - 176,474 243,580 290,855
Total 848,667 913,969 1,072,950 1,101,589
% Growth 3.9 7.7 17 3
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Power Generation

Power Sent From Tanweer Plants & Power Purchases

The net power sent from Tanweer power plants increased to 748,396 MWh in 2019 from 730,586 MWh in
2018 reflecting an increase of 2.4%. Morever the total power purchase increased by 13.2% in 2019. Figure
(11) shows MWh sent out from Tanweer power stations & power purchases in the last five years and Figure
(12) presents the detail of Tanweer's supplied power through Tanweer’s plants, OPWP (Tibat), PDO, Tibat
and Al-Mazyunah (renewable PV) sources.

Figure 11: MWh sent out from Tanweer power stations & power purchases (MWh)
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Figure 12: Percentage power sent from Tanweer plants and power purchase 2019
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Regional Energy Generation

The following figure portrays the regional power generation from Tanweer power stations in 2019. It can
be noted that around 56% of power was generated from Al Wusta power plants, 40% and 4% from Dhofar
and Musandam power plants respectively.

Figure 13: Regional power generation 2019 (Tanweer power plants)
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System Efficiency

Our measure of system fuel efficiency represents the total kWh supplied to customers divided by total
diesel fuel required to run our systems (liters). As some of our power is procured from non-diesel sources
(mainly Musundam Independent gas Power Plant as well as PDO Gas-fired generation) an increase in
these sources will reduce overall diesel consumption. Tanweer reached 5.302 kWh per liter of fuel in
2019. This was mainly due to an increased contribution of energy generation from Tibet Independent
Gas Plant, in the Musandam governorate. The following charts show the trend in diesel fuel requirement
(efficiency) from 2016 to 2019.

Figure 14: System Efficiency (kWh / Litre) (2016 - 2019)
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4 34
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System Loss

System loss for the year 2019 was 14.69% compared to 11.69% in 2018. The company continues to make
efforts to measure the system loss in Tanweer as this indicator will contribute to finding solutions to
measure the operational and supply performance in the company. A study has been finalized to calculate
the technical and commercial loss in the system. There is also a committee headed by the CEO consisting
operating, supply, financial and planning management teams. The company has since seen improvement
in reporting and loss system monitoring in all license areas which is expected to deliver loss reduction in
the future.

Figure 15: % Losses (technical & non-technical) in 2018 and 2019
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Water Desalination

As part of its regulated activities, Tanweer produces desalinated water from 6 Reverse Osmosis (RO)
plants. The six plants are located in the governorates of Musandam (Kumzar), Al Wusta (Dugm, Masirah,
Sograh and Abu Mudhabi) and Dhofar (Al-Halanyat). Tanweer supplies the desalinated water in bulk
to the Public Authority of Water (PAW) for distribution to end customers. In 2019 Tanweer produced
3,643,626 cubic meters of desalinated water. This is around 2% lower than the 2018 desalination amount
of 3,663,004 cubic meters and this is partly due to the Hika Cyclone that occurred in the central Al-Wusta
region in 2019, which led to a reduction in water production this year. As can be seen in figure (17) Al
Wousta regional desalination plants sent 95% of total desalinated water (mainly from Al-Dugm Plant 50%
and from Masirah Plant 43%) and the rest was produced by other facilities.

Table 13: Water desalination plant 2018 — 2019

Net sent m3

Gross Production m3

oflEy Plan Capacity Water Sent
(m3/day) 2018 2019 2018 2019 Growth
Al Dugm 8,000 1,790,369 | 1,812,934 | 1,751,744 | 1,696,900 -3%
Masirah 6,100 1,655,470 | 1,580,351 | 1,485,187 | 1,452,085 -2%
Kumzar 450 75570 | 100,071 | 74,376 98,899 33%
AbuMudabi 200 44,125 | 49907 | 43173 49,200 14%
) Wa:te r Sawgrah 250 44,483 | 42,144 | 44,077 41,560 -6%
D e Sa I N a t 1 O N Al Halaniyat 190 52,987 | 58219 | 52,275 57,492 10%
Total 15,190 3,663,004 | 3,643,626 | 3,450,832 | 3,396,136 -2%
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Figure 16: Percentage of water desalination by plant - 2018 & 2019 (net)
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Commissioned Projects of 2019

Rub Al Khali Project

Tanweer Business
Development

With the total cost of RO 2,063,407, Tanweer
has recently operated the new 33kV Overhead

Capital Investment Projects line from Yabal Substation from PDO (Petroleum
Development Oman) and the new Primary Sub-
Table 14: List of 10 largest projects under execution in 2019 station with a capacity of (2 X 10 MVA) to feed Rub
Al Khali area for the new Royal Oman Police border
Tender No. Projects title Total contract (RO ) post (Ramlat Khilah) in Wilayat lbri at Al-Dhahira
EPC of (2x10 MVA-33/11 kV) Outdoor Step Down Governorate.
39/2017 Substation for Wadi Aswad Area at Wilayat lbri - Al 946,155 The project contains:
Dhahirah Governorate
- P Extension of the existing Switchgear of PDO by
29/2018 Upgrade Electricity Supply system to Lima in Khasab 859,993 installing a new Switchgear Panel (33 kV) GIS.
EPC for Primary Substation to feed Power Supply to P Construction of a 33kV overhead line from
22/2019 (250) of Social Houses in Wilayat Al Mazyounah - Dhofar 806,923 PDO'’s (Petroleum Development Oman) Yabal
Governorate Substation for a distance of 58 km.

The feed of Power Supply to Masirah Villages and » Construction of an integrated primary Sub-

24/2019 Royal Camp in Wilayat Masirah - Al Shargiya South 656,700 station (33kV/1 1k).
Governorate » Construction of 11kV underground cable to

the Empty Quarter border post for 3 km.
Construction of (33 kV) OHL from the Existing PDO
Harweel - Qatbit Saadoun Line and Installation of (2X1

0372018 MVA-33/11 kV) Primary Substation at Fatkhat Area in 504,874 Al Dhafrat Power Station
Wilayat Thumrait - Dhofar Governorate With the total cost of RO 1,269,457, Tanweer
- . completed the project of EPC & Rehabilitation
33/2018 EPC fgr The Mid-Term Power Supply to the Fishery 378,357 t Al Dhafrat P Stat " o of 35
Zone in Wilayat Dugm at Al Wusta Governorate © atrat Fower otation with a capacity of 5.
. . . MW to cover the load demand in Al Dhafrat area
10/2019 Expanding of Mudhai Power Station 365,430 in Wilayat Al-Mudhaibi of Al Wusta Governorate.
5/2019 Upgrading existing 33/11 2X10 MVA SS at Haima 298,515
09/2019 Electricity Supply to Marmul Area at Dhofar 291185
Governorate
36/2018 Power Supply to the Investors in Light Industrial Area in 91.290

Wilayat Al Dugum- Al Wusta Governorate
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Tanweer Supply for Fisheries Industry

in Dugm

In 2019 Tanweer commissioned the new line for the
fisheries industries in Wilayat Dugm at Al-Wusta
Governorate by 33 and 11 kV feeders with (2x6

MVA) Primary Substation after the completion of
necessary tests and inspections.

The project consists of three parts, the first part
being the construction of medium voltage cables
and the overhead line from Dugm South station,
running a length of 14 km with 33kV voltage
capacity.
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The secondpartis the construction of anew outdoor
primary substation in the Fisheries Industry, with a
voltage of 33/11kV and a total capacity of 2x6MVA.

The third part is the construction of two new
distribution stations near the investors of the
Fisheries Zone, each containing a capacity of
TMVA (11 /0.433 kV). This project comes within the
framework of the development plans undertaken
by Tanweer to sustain the electricity supply services
for customers in those areas.
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Asset Management Key Achievements for 2019

e Asset management department continues implementing the Condition Based Risk Management

(CBRM) process that enables companies to use special tools such as Corona Camera, wooden Pole

tester and partial discharge to investigate root causes of failures and assess risk of failure for the critical

network assets. Up to 2019, the total of tested assets was 65 transformers, 196 switchgear panels, and
6 11kV feeders.

e Tanweer has successfully passed the Renewal
audit for ISO55001 in the Asset management
system. The external audit has been carried
out by Lloyd’s Register, to verify the condition
of previous NCs and to assess continued
compliance with ISO 55001 Standards to ensure
continual improvement continual improvements.
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e Power station audit: Tanweer conducted an audit of the 6 largest capacity power diesel stations in e GIS: Our phase 2 GIS strategy has been built as per the below structure:
2019. The aim of the audit was to conduct a total validation on how power station data is being used,
recorded and reported. This covered the hourly load, power generated, power consumed inside the
powerhouse as well as the power exported. The findings of this audit highlighted that the percentage
internal consumption of the stations (consumed to generated power) varies between the maximum
load months and minimum load months. Moreover, the average % for the 6 sites is 3- 5% while Al
Dugm is the highest 10% -15% because of the power consumption of the RO desalination plant. GIS strategic plan
There were no errors found in the daily log entries and power plant summary report calculations for phase two
the days sampled. A total of 18 days were sampled for the 6 power plants audited.

/ £, . " ] ”

P

. Applications :
System Design Data Update & Tools Staffing

> System Design
Current GIS system infrastructure including the hardware and software requires upgrading to
overcome issues such as speed at regional offices.

» Data Update
The main database upgrade will accurately cover for all network editing including private customer
connections, power plants and 132kV system.

» Applications & Tools
An enhanced user interface is planned to be developed including a dashboard of asset data and
search tools to benefit from the available information.

> Staffing
The full GIS team will include Survey, Data Update, Database Management, End-user Support, and
System Development Staff.




A TANWEER ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Supply Chain & Customer Service

Supply business division is a core function in Tanweer looking after customer services and customer
care. The division maintains the relationship between Tanweer and its customers, continuously aiming at
improving customer satisfaction. There are a number of achievements and initiatives done in 2019 which
include the following:

¢ Launching New CRM: In 2019 a new advanced version Customer Relation Management system has
been launched to enhance customer data cleansing, easing entry and data check. The new version
also has a Field Management System feature which allows the company to track the performance of
the meter reading.

e Census 2020: Tanweer plays a major role in the 2020 census by providing relevant customer
information. The company was able to update the majority of customer information in coordination
with other entities such as the National Center for Statistics and Royal Oman Police.

e Customer Care: We arranged customer awareness campaigns and provided customers with
explanations about relevant codes of practices, tariffs, and billing-related activities.

¢ Implementation of AMR system: In 2019 the implementation of the supply system started in Tanweer
and we succeeded to replace meters related to high-value customers which resulted in capturing more
than 30% of the total connected load. The project continues in 2020 with the aim of further expansion.

¢ Bills Distribution: Expand the use of e-bills distribution using SMS and email, as the majority of
Government bills are distributed by email.

¢ Debtor Management: Improve the debtor management functions and following up on dues, meeting
the hardship customers and offering installment plans.

e Collection Channels: Tanweer offers multi-payment channels to ensure the services are within the
customer’s hands using new technologies and applications which allows Tanweer customers to pay
their bills on time from home.
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Pay your bill at anytime

Customers Communications: In coordination with the media department, awareness messages have
been published through social media and in the field in different regions.

Price Control & Regulation

With reference to the law promulgated by Royal Decree, the Special Economic Zone Authority for Dugm
has been granted the authority to exercise the powers of the authority for Electricity and Water regulation
issued by Royal Decree No. 78/2004 within the limits of the economic area under its administration.

Tanweer from the beginning of 2020 will deal with both the Electricity Regulatory Authority of Oman
(AER) and the Special Economic Zone Authority in Dugm (SEZAD) to serve customers in each of their
authorized areas.

Tanweer operates under an RPI-X Price Control that covers its production (generation/desalination),
transmission, distribution and supply activities. Tanweer’s current price control is fixed by the Authority
for Electricity Regulation (AER) and Special Economic Zone Authority (SEZAD) which allows Tanweer to
recover its operating costs as well as providing funding provisions for capital investments.

By the end of 2019, Tanweer, in cooperation with the AER and SEZAD, completed a review of the price
control monitoring plan (2018-2021), as well as completing the price control mechanism covering the
requirements of Operating cost (OPEX) and capital expenditure (CAPEX) were determined for period
2020-2021.
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Communities
and Society

Tanweer Award for Excellence 2019

Tanweerlaunchedthe Tanweer Awardfor Excellence
competition 2019 for schools in Musandam
Governorate. This was done in collaboration with
the Ministry of Education represented by the
Directorate General of Education in the province.
The winning projects were announced in Atana
Khasab hotel.

The award aims to raise awareness among school
students regarding the reduction of harmful
carbon emissions as well as spreading the culture
of rationalization and sustainability by giving them
the opportunity to share their innovative ideas and
insights to build solid knowledge on renewable
energy initiatives and the electric power field for
future generations.

A

Through this competition, Tanweer was keen
to instill a culture of creativity, innovation, and
excellence in the education sector, starting with
schools, teachers, and finally students.

More than 100 students from 12 schools in
Musandam Governorate had participated in the
competition which was targeting school students
from grades (9-11).

An evaluation committee was formed, consisting
of the Directorate General of Education staff in
Musandam Governorate, as well as Tanweer staff,
chaired by the Musandam regional manager. The
aim was to evaluate the participating schools in
terms of the idea of the project, characteristics,
importance, and innovation as well as the feasibility
of the project. HE, Wali of Khasab started the tour
in the exhibition, whereby, he was introduced to
the projects of the participating schools. During
the ceremony, the winners of the Tanweer Award
were announced.
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We Walk for Goodwill

As part of corporate social responsibility
initiatives, Tanweer organized a charity market for
its employees to encourage them to share their
talents and products. Eng. Saleh bin Nasser Al-
Rumhi, CEO of Tanweer, inaugurated the market
and expressed his pleasure of initiating such
events as part of social responsibility towards the
community.

Tanweer Raising Renewable Energy Generations

Titled “Tanweer kids are renewable energy generations”, Tanweer organized a workshop for employees’
children on renewable energy. Dr. Jamal bin Nasser Al-Subhi, a lecturer at Sultan Qaboos University,
presented the workshop for more than 40 children. The children got the opportunity to learn more about
renewable energy and how it protects the environment. They also visited the solar power project in the
company where Eng. Khalil bin Mubarak Al-Mandhari gave them a brief explanation on the project. The
workshop ended with a session on how to make wind turbines from recycled materials.
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The National Week for Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics

Invited by General Directorate of Education in Musandam, Tanweer participated in the National Week
for Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics. Tanweer was part of the judging committee for
innovations and projects presented by students. The project’s exhibition was followed by a discussion on
the role of institutions in supporting student innovations.

Save Energy Campaign

Tanweer started electricity rationalization campaign
“Murshidoon” to raise awareness among people
regarding the wise use of electricity and the
importance of sustaining it for future generations.
The campaign targeted Musandam, Al-Wusta, and
Dhofar and it was carried for the full year.

Tanweer Organizes Save the
Environment Campaign

Under the slogan “Let's work together and
protect our environment”, Tanweer incorporation
with Mashael Al-Elm School in Masirah and Ras
Madrakah School in Dugm, organized a campaign
to clean beaches. Sixty students participated in
the campaign cleaning Masirah beach and Dugm
beach. The campaign aimed to cultivate notions
of responsibility within students to appreciate the
beauty of Omani natural environment.
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Operational Data

Dhofar Network

Table 15: 2019 Operation data for power plants-Dhofar

Plants Installed The month of  Maximum Diesel 000
kw Peak Demand  peak (kW) Ltrs
AL Halaniat 1,565 525 May 2,298 1,667 738
Andat 2,012 1,100 Sep 4,002 3,955 1,149
Ayoon 1,200 218 Aug 1,044 1,035 435
Barbazoom 1,680 613 Sep 2,732 2,721 799
Dhaboon 4,379 2,273 May 10,733 10,717 3,320
Fatkhait 900 340 Sep 1,415 1,408 511
Herweeb 2,900 1,230 Sep 4,290 4,263 1,322
*Mahwees 400 230 May 417 410 150
*Magshan 2,780 780 May 1,553 1,541 525
Al Mazyounah 10,000 9,410 Sep 40,517 38,999 11,061
Mitten 3,400 1,070 Jun 4,048 4,023 1,218
Motorah 1,100 470 Jun 2,160 2,153 770
Saih Al Khairat 48,702 25,600 Jun 158,829 153,240 38,055
O p e ra t i O n a I Shahb Asaib 23,000 8,790 Jun 42,666 41,442 10,607
Sharbatat 4,700 1,190 April&May 6,062 6,007 2,020
Data Tusnat 1,170 380 May 543 538 171
Mudhai 3,872 2,270 Jun 9,668 9,204 2,747
Hasik 5,000 2,770 Jun 13,281 13,102 4,291
Fershat Qatbeet 10,000 1,458 Jun 4,302 3,301 1,281
Total 128,760 60,717 310,560 299,726 81,170

*Mahwees, and Magshan Power station closed on 2019
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Dhofar Network Musandam Network

Table 16: 2019 Number of distribution substation (11/0.415 kV)- Dhofar Table 18: 2019 Operation data for power plants-Musandam

Substation Type Number

The month

Ground-mounted 147 Maximum Net Diesel
Plants Installed kW of Peak eak (kW) Gross MWh MWh 000 Ltrs
Demand P
Pole mounted 633 SAnnEln
Total 780 *Dibba 5,935 1,600 Jan 1,636 1,563 502
*Khasab 79,590 (Standby) 44,860 Aug 899 133 206
Table 17: 2019 Network Iength ~ Dhofar Madha 11,300 6,570 Jan 28,220 26,935 7,956
Voltage Level (kV) UGC (km) OHL (km) Total Total 53,030 30,755 28,631 8,664
132 = - :
33 32 839 871 stand by P/S
11 110 854 964 Table 19: 2019 Number of distribution substation (11/0.415 kV)- Musandam
Total 142 1,693 1,835 Substation Type Number
Ground-mounted 454
Pole mounted 326
Total 780
Table 20: 2019 Network length — Musandam
l l Voltage Level UGC (km) OHL (km) Total
& & (kV)
132 - 165 165
33 351 159 510
11 290 321 611
Total 641 645 1,286

Al Wusta Network
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Table 21: 2019 Operation data for power plants- Al Wusta & Surrounded Areas Table 24: 2019 Total Tanweer network
The month of Maximum Gross Diesel 000
1) f t Numb
Flants installed kW pq,k Demand peak (kW) mwh  NetMWh Ltrs
Masrooq 1,200 700 Sep 2,435 2,381 778 Power Stations 31
Masirah 56,819 17,400 Jun 81,830 77,553 21,015 No. Distribution Substation (11/0.415 kV)-Ground- 1244
Al-Dugm 67,000 44,700 July 236,275 | 215,805 67,216 mounted ’
AL Khaluf 2,508 1,104 May 4,680 4,544 1,462 No. Distribution Substation (11/0.415 kV)-Pole 1758
ted '
AL-Kuwaimah 8,016 4,170 May 17,629 | 17,311 5,003 onmE
AL-Najdah 2,700 1,795 May 5,158 5,075 1,576 2 [ DS ) 9
Hij 30,100 14,600 May 56,374 | 54,319 15,987 132 (kV) OHL (km) 196
Hitam 2,932 1,340 May 5,756 5,442 1,808 33 (k) UGC (km) 829
Sarab 4,000 1,922 May 7,645 7,477 2,362 33 (k) OHL (km) 1571
AL-Dhafarat 3,500 1,260 Sep 3,740 3,638 1,241
AL-Khadrah 12,700 5,650 May 26715 | 24774 | 7,628 11 {kV) UGC (km) e
Total 192,175 94,641 448,237 | 418,319 126,076 11 (kV) OHL (km) 2,594
Table 22: 2019 Number of distribution substation (11/0.415 kV)- Al Wusta & Surrounded
Areas Table 25: Operational data for desalination
Substation Type Number
Ground-mounted 552 Governorate Desalination | Installed Capacity
Plat m3/day
Pol ted 799
e mennte AL Sharqjyah Masirah 6,100 10 1,580 1,452
Total 1,351
Al-Dugm 8,000 4 1,813 1,698
Table 23: 2019 Network length — Al Wusta & Surrounded Areas
Al Wusta Abu Mudabi 200 3 50 49
Voltage Level (kV) UGC (km) OHL (km) Total
Sougrah 250 2 42 42
132 3 31 34
33 446 573 1019 Dhofar AL Halaniyat 190 2 58 57
11 388 1419 1,807 Musandam Kumzar 450 3 100 99
Total 837 2,023 2,860 15,190 24 3,643 3,397
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Directors’ Report
The Directors submit their raport and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Principal activities

The Company ie primarily undeniaking eleciricity generation, water desalination and electricity distribation
activities in the Musandam Govemorate, Alwuata region, Masirah Island, Khuweima end Qroon areag in
Shargiya region, Aswad area in Dahirah region, Dhofar Govemate (the area outside Dhofar Power
Company SAQG's anthorised area) and in Dakhliya region (the aren outside Mazoon Electricity Company
SAOC's authorised area) under a license issued by the Authority for Electricity Regulation, Oman (AER).

Besia of preparation of accounts

The accompanying audited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Finaneial Reporting Standards, and the Commercial Companies Law of 2019,

Fhe Commerciat Companies Law promulgated by Royal Decree No. 13/ 2019 (" Commercial Comparies
Law of 2019") was issued on 13 February 2019 and has come into foree on 17 April 2019, Compenies are
ellowed 1o ensure compliance with the new Commercial Companies Law of 2019 by 17 April 2020 as per
the transitional provisions contained therein. The Company is currently in the process of impleenting all
changes required by the Cotmmercial Companies Law, promulgsted by Royal Decree No.18/ 2019,

Results and appropriation

The results of the Compuny for the year cnded 31 December 2019 are set out on page 5 to 6 of the financial
slatements.

Audltors

The [inancial statemenls have been audited by KPMG who offer ihemselves for reappoiniment.

On behalf of the Board of Direciors |

— " )
L ‘ = Fi i
. T 7
Frisnt Khumis Al Hashar Saleem ‘]ﬂ.‘l{med Abdulladf Splell Nusser Al Rumbi

Chairmtan Director Chief Executive Officer



KPMG Lower Guif Limited {Oman Branch}
41 Floor, Children's Public Library Building
Shatt| Al Gurum

P. 0. Box: 641, P.C. 112

Suitanate of Oman

Tel. +968 24749600

wywwv kpmig.cam/fom

Independent auditors’ raport
To the Sharsholders of Rural Areas Electricity Company SA0C

Report on the Audit of the Financlal Statemnents
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Rural Areas Electricity Company
SAQC {*the Company"), which camprise the statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2019, and the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive incoma, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes 1o the financial statements, including significant accounting
policies and ather explanatory information set out an pages & to B3.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Campany as at 31 December
2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in sccordance with International Standards on
Auditing {ISAs). OQur responsibilities under those siandards ara further
deserlbed in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financisl
Statements section of our report. We are indepandent of the Company in
accordance with the International Fthics Standards Board for Asccountants
Code of Ethice for Professional Accountants (iESBA Cods} together with tha
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in Sulanate of Oman, and we have fuifilled our other ethical responsibiiities in
accardance with these reguirements and tha IESBA cade. We balisve that the
audit evidence we have obtained is suffisient and appropriate to provide a basis
far our apinion,

Othar information

Management is responsihle for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors’ report set out on page 1.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

KIS Lotwar Gulf LitnDed s @ membar fam of the KPRAG ook of i mgrant fims KPR
Coeprative I KPME Leaarnatianal ™|,  Shrlas @by, Al rightn resersad.
FPRED L Gl Bunch cani ksrneh ureder tha ks of the Bulionsio of man,

a

In connection with our audit of the financtal staternents, our responsibility is to
raad the other information identified above and, in doing 30, consider whether
the other information is materialfy inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

W, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thera is & material
misstaternent of this other information, we are required 1o report that fact, We
have nothing ta repori in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the
Financial Statements

Wanagement is responsibie for the preperation and fair presentation of the
financial siatements in accordance with [ntermational Financial Reporting
Standards and the relevant disclosure requirements of the Commercial
Companies Law of 2019, and for such internal control &s the management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

{n preparing the financial statements, managemant is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concam, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going cencern basis of
accounting unless managemant either intends to fiquidats the Company or to
cesse operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance ars respensible for overseeing the Company’s
financial repotting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjactives are to obtain reasonable assuranca about whether the financial
statemants as &8 whole are free from material migstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it axists. Misstaternents ¢an arise from fraud or ervor and
are considared material if, individually or ia the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expectad to influgnce the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As pert of an audit in accordance with I$As, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also;

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform sudit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our ppinion. The rigk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than far
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissiens, misreprasentations, or the override of internal
control,

KIWAG Lorwea Gulf Limiioasd is 2 mamban Brm of the KFMG ietrari of odponddivl mambes kemp sllkated wih KPRAG Inthinawsnst
Coopersths [* KNG Inbernpliil’), 8 Swisn snliy. A oghty eieneed.
KPRAR Lowe Gull Lintags (Oman Branchh i fegistansd and fognstd # 4 bogign branch ynder tho faues of thi Sullanare o0 Omeen,
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5
4 Statement of financial position
as at 31 December
« Obtain an understanding of internal control relavant to the audit in ordar to 2019 2018
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not Notes RO 000 RO OO0
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the ABSETS
Cornpany’s internsl control, Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 364,078 332,319
« Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the g‘i‘“:tgﬂ’fl_e ::samms 6 gﬂ 807 17
ressonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Togt I'" use at : 59,952 -
managarment. al non-current assety 424,837 332,396
Current assets
i . . Inventories 8 7,724 7,799
« Conclude on the appropritenase of management’s use of the going i 1 B
concern basis of accounting and, based en the audit evidence ohtalned, ;;ietfic‘mr:t:embl“ 190 76,694 44,537
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that Cash and whd’mz ivlents 1 lg'ggg " 83§
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s abilify to continue a& & going Total current nz:lets ns’ L
concarn. If we concluds that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 108,060 89,175
to draw attentlon in our auditors’ report to the related disclosuree in the Total assets 532,997 421,571
financia! statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 10 modify our EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
opinion. Qur conclqsmr}s are based on the audit evidence obta!r!ed up to Capital and reserves
the date of our auditors’ report. However, futurs events or conditions may Share capital 12 100,000 100,000
cause the Company to cease 10 continue as a going concern. Lepal reserve 13 1,655 1,178
. General reserve 14 2,928 2,07¢
« Evaluate the overall pressntation, structure and content of the financial Retained earnings 32,377 35,943
statements, including the diselosures, and whether the financial statements Cumnulative changes in [air vatse 21 (5,162) -
represent the underlying transacilens and events in a manner that achieves Sharehalder's funds 15 1,589 1,589
fair presentation. Total equity 133,387 140,780
We communicate with those charged with gavarnance regarding, among othar Nan-current liabilities
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Term boan 16 115270 135,828
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during Provisions 17 1,266 1,345
our audit. Deferred tax lability 18 18,243 16,502
Deferred I:Jwenue 19 88,692 54,761
. Caontract ligbility 20 46 13
Repott on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements Lease liabilities 22 8,154 .
. . . Fair value of derivative financial instruments .
We raport that, the financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the Total non-currest Niabilities . a a—z;% — AT
applicabls provisions of the Commercial Companies Law of 2019, f 5
PM Current liahifities
| 8. = Term loan 16 20,556 16,73
o Deferred revenue 1% 4,197 2,931
11 March 2020 KPMG Lower Gulf Limited Lease {ishif{ues 22 3,603
{Oman Branch) Trade and other payables 23 52,759 47,105
Short term borrowings 24 30,000 -
Provisions 17 563 569
‘T'otal cuprent linbilities 111,768 7300
Total liahilities 399,510 280,791
Total equity and liabilfties 532,897 -_&Sll__
e 7‘_} _‘:"\:‘- - q—""
Faisal xpﬁ Hasher Abd ‘Saleh Al Rwumhl
Chalrman Deputy Chairman Chief Executive Offlcer
SE:‘L‘Z&?;:‘;-&‘:LE".‘;TW.".’ 9:,'2;:"'1; PG etk o ndcpundcn o b EPMG The accompanying nokes on pages 2 to 53 form an integral part of these financial statcments.
KPS Lower Gull Lwmited IDniwn Branzhl icpanad a6 & etar the laws of the Subanate of Oanman. The demt Wdllﬂm, mpon is et f{n’thﬁn pagss 2_4




RURAL AREAS ELECTRICITY COMPANY SAOC

Statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December

Notes
Revenue 25
Cost of sales 26
Gross profit
General and administralive expenses 27
Other income 29
Impairment loss on irade receivables 9
Profit from operations
Finance income k1]
Finance costs kil
Net profit before tax
Taxation kil
Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Tiems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Net movement in fair value of cash flow hedges 2
Tncome tax effect 18

Other comprehensive logs for the year — net of tax
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

6
2019 2018
RO008  RO'000
139,748 125,666
(105,739)  (94,123)
34,009 33,543
(6790 (15907
4,535 4,019
(55%) (360)
21,195 19,295
458 188
(14,234) (6,373
7419 12,610
(2,650} (2,501)
4,769 10,£09
(6,073) -
s11 -
(5,162} .
(393) 10,109

The sccompanying notes an pages 9 to 53 form an integral part of these financial statements

The independent auditors’ report is set forth on pages 2-4.
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RURAL AREAS ELECTRICITY COMPANY SAQC

8
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2019
19 2018
RO'000 RO'G00
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year before tax 7,419 12,610
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 20,475 12,337
Finanoe costs 14,234 6,873
Finance income (458) {188)
{Loss) / gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (38) 246
Provision for inveatory (554) 282
Provision for employee benefits « nel 89 153
Provision for bad and doubtfil debts 539 360
Change in: 41,726 32,6737
Deferred revenue 30,195 276
Trade and other payables 5,654 (5,160}
Inventories 629 (1,89
Trade and other receivables (32,716) {18,597)
Payment of employee benefits (174) (123)
Net cask generated from operating activities 45,314 7,162
Cash flows from investing activities 7
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (14,353) {15,035)
Government grant assel investment {33,102) .
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipraent 38 kil
Shert term deposits (5,000) -
Finance income received 458 188
Net cash ased in investing activities (51,959) (14,776)
Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayments) / proceeds from long term bortowings (16,737 152,563
Net chattge in shott term bormowings 30,000 (114,825)
Holding company loan repayment - (4,002)
Lease payments (3,581)
Finance costs paid (14,234) (6,873)
Dividends paic (7,000 (1,500)
Net cash {used in} / generated from financing activities (11,552) 25,363
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 7 (13,197 17,749
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 36,839 19,090
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year (note 11} 18,642 36,839

The accompanying notes on page 9 to 53 form an infegral part of these financial statements.

The independent auditors® report is set forth on pages 2 (o 4,

RURAL AREAS ELECTRICITY COMPANY SAOC

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

1.

2

1l

1.2

3.

Genersl

Rural Areas Electricity Company SAOC (the “Company™) is a closely held Omani joint stock company
registered under the Commerzizl Companies Law of Oman,

The establishment and operations of the Company are govemed by the provisions of the Law for the
Regulation and Privatization of the Electricity imd Related Water Sector (the “Sector Law™) promulgated by
Roval Decree 78/2004.

The Company is primarily underiaking electricity generation, water desalination and electricity distribution
activities i the Musandam Governorats, Alwusta region, Masirah Island, Khuweima and Qroon ereas in
Shargiya region, Aswad area in Dahirah region, Dhofar Governate (the area outside Dhofar Power Company
SAQG's authorised area) and in Dakhliya wgion (the arca ontside Mazoon Rlectricity Company BAOC's
suthorised area) under & Hcense issued by the Authority for Blectricity Regulation, Oman (AER).

The Company commenced its operations on | Mey 2005 (the “Transfer Date™) following the implementation
of a decision of the Ministry of National Economy (the “Transfer Scheme'} issued pursnant to Royal Decree
78,2004,

Rural Areas Electricity Company SAUC is a 99.99% subsidiary of Electricity Holding Company SAQC {"'(he
Holding company”}, & company registered in the Sultanate of Oman and 0.005% is held by the Nama Shared
Services LLC and ¢.005% by Nama Institute of Competence Development LLC.

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards {[FRS)

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations ate cffective for annual periods
beginning on or afler 1 January 2019, Those which are elevant ® the Company, are set out below.

New and revised IFRS in issuc and effective

TFRS 16 Lenses

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Tax Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negative Corapansation (Amendments to IFRS 8)
Long-tertn Interesls in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendiments to 145 28}
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Sestiement (Amendments to JAS 19)

Annal Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle — various standards

# 8 & & » 0

These standards do nat have any impact on these financiul statements except for IFRS 16, the effect of which
is explained in note 3.

New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective

e Amendments to References 1o Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (from 1 January 2020)
« IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (1 January 2021)

Thesc standards, amendments and interpretations ate not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company's financial statements.

Clianges in signifieant accounting policies

Except as described below, the accounting policies applied in these financial statements are the same as those
applied in the Company’s financial statéments as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018,

The Company adopted IFRS 16 “Leases’. The standard replaces the existing guidance on leases, including 1AS
17 ‘Leases”, IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an Arrangement containg a Lease”, SIC 15 “Qperating Leases -
Incentives™ and SIC 27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form of a 1.ease.
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3. Chnnges In significant accountlug policies (contfnued)
31 IFRS 16 Leases

The changes in accounting policies are also expecied to be reflected in the Company's financial staements as
ut and for the year ending 31 December 2019,

The Company has initially adopted IFRS 16 Leases from ! January 2019,
The effect of initially applying [FRS 16 is mainly atributed to the following:

- earlier recognition of nsufruct charges, building rent and vehicle lease as a lease liability and finance
charge on lgase liability; and
recognitiont of Fight-of-use asset to use the Jand leased from Ministry of Housing, building reat and vehicle
lease depreciation on right-of-use essets.

IFRS 16 spesifies how the menagement will recognise, peasure, present and disclose lease. The standard
provides a singly lessee accounting model, requining lessees fo recognise assets and Jisbilities for alt leayes
wnless e lease term is 12 months or less or the inderlying asset have a low value. Lessors continue to classify
leases 45 operating or finance, with JFRS 16°s approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its
predecessor, IAS 17,

IFRS 16 peovides a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arangements and their treatment in
the financizl statements for both fessors and lessees. ITFRS 16 has superseded the previously issusd IAS 17
Leases end the related intetpretations (i.¢. TFRIC 4, SIC 15 and SIC 27) for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019, The date of initil application of IFRS 16 for the Compeny is 1 January 2015.

The Compeny has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and (herefore the conmparative
information has not been restated and continued (o be presented under previous applicable standards. The
Company has chosen the “Cumulative caich-up approach™ for applicatlon of IPRS 16 on transition.
Consequently, the Company will recognise lease liability for oulslanding lease payruents for existing operating
leases using incremental borrowing rale at date of transition and carry forward existing finance lease ligbilitles
and mcesure tight-of-use asset at an amovnt equat to liability adjusted for any accmals or prepayments with
no effect on (he opening retained eamings on transition.

Accovnting policy applicable from 1t January 2019

At inception of a contract the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is or
contains a lense if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to conirol the use of an identified
asset the Company assesses whether:

+  the coniract involves the use of an jdemified asses - this may be specified explicitly or impicitty, and
should be physically distinet or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If
the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

+  the Company has the right to obtain substantialiy all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the peried of use; and
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3 Chnanges In significant 2 p f

3.1 1FRS 16 Lenses (continued)
Accounting pelicy applicable from 1 January 2019 {continued)

s the Company has the right to direct the wse of the nsset. The Company bas this right when it has the
devigion-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is wsed. In
rare cases where the decision about how and for whal purpose the asset is wsed is predetermined, the
Company has the right to direct the nae of the auset if either:

- the Company has the right to operate the asseq; or
- the Company designed the asset in a wey that predeiermines how and for what purpose it will be need.

This pelicy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 January 2019,

At inception or on reassessment of B contract thet contains a lease component, he Company allocates (he
consideration in the conteact to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-nlone prices. However,
for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a fessee, the Company has elected niot 10 separate noa-lease

components and account for the lease and non-lease components a6 a single lease component.

A, Aselessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and o Jease liability a1 the lease commencement date. The right-
af-use assel is initially measured at cost which comprises the initisl amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial dircet costs incurred end an
estimate of costs 1o dismantle and remove the undlerlying asset or to restore the undeclying asset or the sive on
which it is located less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term, The eslimated
useful lives of righl-of-use assels are detemmined on the same busis as those of property and equipment. In
addition, e right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain re
measurements of the lease [ability.

The lease liability is initiully measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not patd ai the

date di ted using the interest rate implicit in the bease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing ralc as the discount rate,

Lesse payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following;

+ fixed peyments, including in-substance fixed payments;

. variable lease payrnents that depend on an index or & rate, initially measured using the index or rate #5 at
the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

* the cxercise price nnder 2 puichase option that the Company is reasonably certain 1o exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain fo exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease Liability is measured ot amortised cost using the effective interest method. it is remeasured when
there is & change in fulure lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate if there is a change in the
Company’s estitmate of the amount expected fo be payable under a residual value g or if the Company
changes its of whether it witl ise @ putchase extension or termination option,

When the lease Liability is cemeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustmént is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in prafit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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3. Changes in slgnificant ting pollcien { d)
3.1 IFRS 16 Leases (contimied}
Accounting policy appilcable from 1 Januury 2019 {continued)
A, As 1 lessee {continned)
The Company presents right-of-use agsets and lease Yabilitics in separately in the of financial
posifion.
‘The finance cast is charged to profit or loss over the leass period so as 10 produce a constant periodic rate of
i t on the remaining bal of the liability for each pesiod, The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
sharter of the asset's useful Jife and the lease term on a stepight-Line basis,
The principal cstimuted remaining useful lives uged for this purpose are.
Assets Years
Usufruct Jand 1-9
Leased vehicles 1-2
Power plant 10

Short term leases and leases of low value assels

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term assets of 1T
equipment that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognises
the fease payments associated with these Yeases as an expense on a straight ling basis over the lease term,

B. Asalessor
The Company has not entered into any arangement in which it is acting as a Lessar,
Impuct onn flaancial statenents

At transition, the Company has opted for the modified retrospective spplication pexnitted by ]FRS 16
accordingly, Jease liabilities were measured ot the present value of the ining lease payments, d

at the Company's derived i 1 borrewing rate (i.e. 5.5% to 7.03% per anpum) as &t 1 Janwary 2019,
Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal 10 the Jeasa liab ility adjusted by the amownt of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments,

On fransitdon to IFRS 16, the Company recognised & lease liability amounting to RO 63,93 million with &
corresponding ripht-of-use asset in the same amount, with no effect on opening retained earnings. IFRS 16
trunsition disclosures also require the Company to present the reconciliation, which has beeo disclosed below:

Liability recognised as at 1 January 2019

RO 000
Qperating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 99,624
Discounting effect using mcremental borrowing rate @ 7.4% (35,6913
Lease liability recognised as &1 1 Janvary 2019 63,933
Of which are:
Current leage liabilities 3,693
Non-cunent Icase Habilitics 60,240
63,933

The associated right-of-use assets for leases were measuret at the amaowat equal to the lease liability, sdjusted
by the amount aof any prepaid or acorued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of
financial position as at | Janvary 2019, There were no oncraus lease contracts that would have required an
adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.
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Changes in signlficant sccounting policies (continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (continued)
Impact on financinl statements (coniintied)

The recognised right-of-use assets relate o the following types of assets:
RO *000

Power plant 62,135
Land 1,569
Vehicles I -
Total 63,933

Practical expedients used

The Compeny used the following practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified
as uperating lesses under 1A8 17,

«  Applied a single discount rate 10 a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

= Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of IAS 37 onerous t provision i diately before
the date of initial application. as an alternative to an impairuent review,

. Applied the exemption not to recognise tight-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less then 12
moaths of lease term.

+  Excluded initial direct costs from mcasuring the right-of-use asset at the date of initial applicstion.

»  Used hindsight whea d ining, the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or tenminate
the fease.

Accounting policies 2pplicable before 1 January 2019

[0 the comparetive pemd 28 a lessee the Company classified leases that transfer substantially all of the risks
i ds of o ag fi leases. When this was the case, the leased assets were measured initially
at en gmonnt equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments,
Mini lease p ts were the payments over the lemse letm that the lessee was required to make,
excluding any contingent reat,

Subsequently the assets were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Assets held ender other leases were classified ag opemating leases and were not recognised in the Company's
gratement of financial position, Paymenis made under operating leases were recognised in profit or loss on s
siraight line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incemlives received were recognised as an integral part of
the lotal lease expense over the term of the Jease.

Summary of siguificant accounting policies
Statement of complinnee

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finaocial Reporting
Standards, {TFRS) and the requirements of the Commercial Companies Law of 2019,

The Commerciat Companies Law promulgated by Royal Decree No. 1872019 {* Commercial Companies Law

of 2019") was issued on 13 February 2019 and has come into force on 17 Aprit 2019, Companies are allowed

ta ensure compliance with the new Commervial Compeanies Law of 2019 by 17 April 2020 ss per the

transitional provisions contained therein, 1he Company is currently in ihe process ol implementing all changes
d by the £« ial Companies Law, pr Igated by Royal Decree No, 18/ 2019,

Basis of preparstion

The financial sfatements have been prepered on the historical vost basis,

Historical cost is generally baged on fhe fair valne of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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Summary of significant acconnting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

The financial statements are prepared in Rial Omani (RO}, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
CUTTENCY.

The preparation of financial stat ts in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accoumting
estimates. [t also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s
accoumting policies. The aress involving a higher degres of judgment or complexity or areas where

assumptions and eslimatés are significant to the financisl staterients are disclosed in note 5.

Determination of fair values

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categatised inte Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree (o which the inputs ta the fair value mensurements are observable md the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

»  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unedjusted) in active markets for identical nssets or liabilities that the
entity can access al the measurement dale;

+  Level 2 inpuis are inpuls, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or lighility, either directly or indireetly; and

+  Level 3 inputs are unchservable inputs for the asset or linbility.

The principal accovnting policies ate set oul below.
Properly, plant aad equipment

Propetty, plant and eguipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment
loss, The cast of property, plant and equipment is their purchuse price together with any incidental expenses
necessary to bring assets to its intended condition or location.

Srbsequent expendifure

Expenditure incurred (o replace a component of an jtem of property, plant and equipment is capitalised if it i
probable that the future coanomic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company, and its cost
can be measured reliably. All other maintenance expenditure is recognised in the st t of profit or loss
and other comprehonsive income as an expense as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in the of profit or Joss and other comprehensive income on a straight-
tine basis over the sstimated useful Lives of each part of an item of property, ptani and equipment, since this
most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future ¢eonomic bencfits embodied in the
aseet.

The principal cstimated uscful lives used for thig purpose are:

Years

Buitdings on leasehald land 10

" Electricity distribution works 20 40
Lines and cablies 20 - 50
Diesel geoerators 15-30
Renewable generators 25
Substation assels 20 - 40
Desalingtion plants 20 - 40
Ohther piant and machinery 20 - 40
Furniture, fixtares and vehicles 5-7

Plant spaves Py
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Summary of slgaificant ting pelicies feontintied)

Property, plant and equipment {zontinued)

Work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated al cost. When the undetlying nsset is roady for use in its intended sondition
and Yocation, work-in-progress is iransferred to the appropriele propetty, plant and equipment category and
depreciated in accordanue with depresiation policy of the Company.

Gains and losses on dispasals of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to fheir carrying
amounts and are teken into account in deternuining operating profits.

Impairment of non-financial asseds

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financisl assets other then inveniories are reviewed at sach
reparting date to determing whether there is any indication of impafrment, Ifany sach imdications exist then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds iis value in
use and jts fair value less costs to sell. In assessing the value in use, the estimated fature cash flows are
discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax digeount rate that reflects t market ts of the
time value of money and the risks specified 1o the assed. fmpairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed
at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased ar no longer exists, An impairment loss is
seversed if there has been a chanpe in estimates used lo defermaine the recoverable amount, An impairment logs
is reversed only to (he extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determmined, nel of deprecistion or amorfisation, if no impairment Joss had been recognised.

Financial instruments

IFRS 9 Financial instruments introduces principlebused requirements for the ¢lassification of financial assets.
The Standard contains two primary measurement categarics for financial assets: smortised cost and faic value.
The classification of financial asscts under IFRS 9 is generatly based on the busincss model in which the
fi jal assot is d and conteactual cash flow characteristics. Under TFRS 9, derlvatives embedded in
cantrats where the host is a financial asset in tha scope of the standard are never sep d. Instaad, the hybrid
Fnancial instrament as & whole is assessed for classification.

Fi 1al assets and f ial ligbilities are recopnised when the Company becomes a patty to the contrachual
provisions of the instnmcnt. The principal financial instrurents used by the Company, ficnn which financial
mstrament risk arises, are as follows:

1. Trude and other receivables

2. Cash snd cash equivalents

3. Amaoont due from related parties
4. Government subsidy receivable
5. Long term Joan

6. Shont term borrowings

7. Trade and other payables

Inktlal recognltion
Financit! assets
On initial recagnition, a financial asset is classified as measured ax amortised cos, fair value through othar

comprehensive income — debt instruments; fair velue twough ofher comprehensive income — equity
instrumnents; or fair value through peofit or logs.
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Summary of significant accounting pelicies (oortinued)
Finpncial iostruments fcontinged)

Initial recognition feontinued)

Financial assets (coniinued)

Financial assefs at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured a1 amortised cost if it meses both of the following condilions and is not designsied
as at Fair value throuph profit or loss:

+  Itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets fo vollect contractual cagh flows; and

+ Its condractual temms give rise on specified dates to cash fows thet are solely payments of principal and
interest on the pringipat amount outsianding.

Fingncigl assets at fair valve thraugk other comprehensive Income

Equity instroments which ure not held for irading ar issued as conlingent consideration in business combination,
and for which the company has made an jrevocable election at initial recognition to recognise changes in fair
value through other comprehensive income rather than profit ar loss. This election (s made on an invesiment-
by-investment basis.

Debt inst te where the | cash flows are solely ptincipal and interest and the objective of the
Compaty’s business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

Financial assets at faiv valve theough profit or loss

All financial sssets pet classified as measored at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income as described sbove are measured at fair value through profit or foss,

Fitinncial assers, at initial recognition, may be designated at fair vatue through profit or loss, if the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsisient treatment that would atherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognizing gaing or Josses on them on a different basis.

Financiad labilities

Finaneia! liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cast or fair value through profit or loss. A financial
liability is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative
or it is designated as such on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities, at initial recognition, may be desipnated ai fair value through profit or loss if the following
crileria are snet:

a) The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis;

b) The liabiliies are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed and their performance evaluated
on fair value basis, in accordance with a docu d risk strategy, or

<} The financial Hability contains an émbedded derivative that would otherwise need tu be separaiely recorded.

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair valve and net gains eand losses,
including any interest expenss, are recoguized in the statement of profit or loss.
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Svmmary of signlficant ace Zp {
Pinanelal instr t$ feontinued)
Subsequent ement and galn or losses
Financlal assets

Financial assets af amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at smottized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized

cost is reduced by impairment losses. 1 1 i foreign exchange geing and lossesl and _impailment are
reougnized in the st t of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on DE recognilion is recngnized in the statement
of profit or loss.

Flnancial asseis at fair valie through other comprehensive income

) Debt insiruntenis

These assets are subscquently measured at faic value. I i 1 " ted using the effective interest
method, foraign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recoghized m_thel statement of profit Dm‘.lu':lss.
Other net gains and losses ate recognized in the t of othcr compret incame. On DE recognition,

gains snd losses avoumutated in the statement of other comprehensive income are reciassified ta the slatement

of peofit or Inss.

8} Equity instruntents ) ] )
These assets are subsequently messured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in the profit ar ]?ss
gecount unless the dividend cleatly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Othgr net gaing
and losses are recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income and are naver reclassified 1o the

statement of profit or loss,
Financial assefs at jair value through profit ar foss

These assefs are subsequently measured at fair vaie. Net gains and losses, including any i.l'ltﬂ?sl or dividend
1 ized in the stat 1 of profit or loss. However, see note (Derivative financial instraments

, Bre U
and hedging) for derivalives designated as hedging instruments,

Financial liahilities

Financial linbililies ore subsequently measured at amortized cost using lhs‘ effactive interest method,lf
applicable. The effective interest method is the method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial lishility
and of allocating milerest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exacltly
discounts estimared fature cash payments through the expected life of the fi gl lability 10 the net cartying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on DE recognition i also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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4.

Summary of significant ting polictes {coniinued)

Fluancial instruments feortinwed}

Reclassification

Finanelal assers

The Company only reclassifies Finamaial assets if, and anly if, the objestive of the business mode] for managing
those financial assets is changsd. Such changes are expected to be very infiequent as these changes musi be
significant to the Company’s operations and demanstrable 10 external partics.

If the Company determines ibat its busi miedel bas chonged in o way that is significant ta its operations,

then it reclassifies al} affected mssets prospectively from the first day of the next reporting peried (the
reclessification date). Prior periods are not restated.

Financiol labitities

The Compuny dstermincs the classification of fi inl liabilitiee on initisl recognition. Subsequent
reclassification is not allowed.

Modlficatlons of financial assets and financlal Labilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financiel asset are madified, the Company evaluates whether the cesh flows of the medified
asset are substantially different. If the cesh flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash
flows from the original fi ial asset are < d to have expired. I [his case, the original financial asset is
derecognised and a new financial asset is recognized at fair vatoe.

If the cash flows of Ihe modified asset cerried at amortized cost are nol substantially different, then the
modification dags not result in DE recogaition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recaiculates the
prass carmying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the ameunt arising from adjusting the gross carrying
amount a5 & modification gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss.

Fingnelof iabilifies

If the tetms of a financial lability are medified and the cash flows of 1he modified liabitity are substantially
different then, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value, The difference
betwean the catrying amount of the financial liability extinguished nnd the new financial liability with modified
ferms is recognized in the statement of profit ot loss.

Derocognitlon

Finnncial ascets
A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or post of & proup of simitar financial assets)
is derccognized when:

a} The rights to receive cash flows from the assel have expired, or

h) The Compeany retains the right to receive cach flaws from ilie asset, but assumes ac obligation to pay them
in full without inaterial delay to 2 third party under & “pass-threugh” atrang t; or

¢} The Compeny hes iransferred its rights fo receive cash flows from the pssct and ejther (a) has transferred
substantially al] the tisks and rewards, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has (rausferred control of the asset.
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Summary of significant accounting policies feomtimied)

Financial lnstruments (continyed)

Drerceognition (continued)

Financial assers {continwed}

On derecopnition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset {or the carrying

amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of (i) the congideration received
(including any new asset obtained lss any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss thel hed

been recognized in the t of other comprehensive income 5 recopnized in the stalement of profit or
Inss.
From 1 January 2018, any cumulative gain/loss recognized in the 1 of other comprehensive income in

respect of equity instrument designated as fair vahie through other comprehensiv i% not gnized in the
statement of profit or loss on DE recognition of sach instrument. Any interest in trunsferred financial assets
that qualify for DE recognition that is d or retained by the Company is recognized a3 a separate assct or
liability.

When fhe Company hes transferred its rights to teceive cash flows from an anset or has entered into » pass-
througl: arrangement, it evaluates if and to whal extent it has reiained the risks and revmrds of owaership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues fo recognize the transferved asset to ihe extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Cormpany also recognizes an associated lability, The iransferred asset

and the igted liability are d on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company
has relained.
Continving involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the ferred asset is ed ai the lower

of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maxfmum amount of ideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

Financin! Nabiities

A financiad Liability is d anized when the obligation vnder the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, sueh an exchange or modification is treated
as & DE recogaition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the differcnce in the
respetive carrying mounts is recognized i the statement of profit or loss.

QOffsetting
Fi ial assets and fi ;al Yabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statemens of financial

position when, and only when, the Company currently has 5 legaliy enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends sither 1o settle them on 2 net basis or fo realize the asset and setile the liability simultancously.

Impairment of finanetal assets

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss® model in [AS 39 with a forward-looking “expected credit loss' (‘ECL")
mode]. This requires considezable judgement sbout how changes in economic factors affect capected eredit
losses, which will be d ined on a probability-weighted basis,
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Summary of significant ting policles {continned)

Finauclyl instruments (continued)

Impairment of finaneial assets (continued)

The Company recognizes logs sliowances for ECLs oo the following instruments that are not measured at fair
value through profit or loss:

+ Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

+  Diebl instrumenis measured at fair value larough other comprehensive income;
= Lense receivable in the scope of LAS 17;

+  Fingncial guarantee contmets and loan commitments in scape of IFRS 9; and
+ Contract assets (as defined in IFRS 15).

Measurement of Joss allowances

The financial assets at amortized cost consist of trade receivables and cath and cash equivalents, Under IFRS
4, loss allowanices are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-moath ECLs: thest aro ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 monshs afler the
reporting date; and

- Lifetime ECLg: these are ECLs ¢hat result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrnment.

The Corspany has elected to loss aflo for trade receivables at an tequal to lifetime BCLs.

Witen delermining whether the credit risk of a financial asset bae increased significantly since the initial
recogaition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and avaitable withoul undue cost or effort. This includes both quantilelive and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including
forvrard-looking informaltion.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs it the maximbm contractual period over which the
Company is exposed ¢o credit risk.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a finencial asset bas significantly increased since initial
recognition and whilc ¢stimating expesied credit loss, when there is objective evidence or indicator for the
financial assets, Examples of spch indicators include:

o Significant financial difficalty of the borrower or issuer;

o Delinquency by borrower;

¢ R ing of an { due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise,
indications that a borrower ot {ssuer will enter bankrupiey;

o The disappearance of an active marke? for a security; or

o If it past due For more than 30 deys.

Loss allowances for trade and other receivables, contraci assets and lease receivable withoul significant
financing are always measured et an amount equal to lifetime expected credit foss.

IFRS 9 does not define the renn ‘defautt’, but instead requires each entity (o do so. The definition has to be
consistent with that used for intermal credit risk managernent purposes for the relevant financial instrument, and
has to consider qualiletive indicators —e.g. breaches of co —when appropriate
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Summary of slgnificant ting policies fcontinued)

Financial instruments (confiued)

M ment of 1oss all o5 (contirued)

The Company considers a financial asset 1o be in defauli when the counter party is unlikely to pay its credit
obtigations to the Company in full (based on indicator abeve), wilhout recousse by the Company to actions
such 88 realizing security {if any is held); or the financial asset is more than the days past due as per below
table:

Category Past due
Governmeni customers — Electricity 360 Days
Private customers — Fleciricity 90 Days
Water customers 90 Days

Lifetime expected credit losses: These losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
evenls over the expeoted life of a financial insrument, if there s significant incrcase in credit risk or under
simplified approach 12-month expected credit losses: These losses are the portion of expected credit logses that
result from defauls events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a sharter petiod if
the expected life of the instrament is fess thon 12 months).

The maximum petiod idered when sstimating expested credit losses is the maximum contractugl petiod
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. An asset is credit-impaired if one or more events have
actually occurred and have a detrimental impaot on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.

The term 'significant increase in credit risk’ is not defined in TFRS 9. An entity decides how to define it in the
context of ifs specific types of instruments, An entity assesses at cach reporting date whether the credit risk on
a financial instremen has increased significantly since initia) recognition. To make the assessment, an entity
congiders changes in the risk of defaull instead of changes in the amousnt of expected credil losses.

An enlity assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit Tisk at each reporting date. The
impairment model in [FRS 9 is symmetrical, and assets can move into and out of the lifetime expected credit

losses categary.

Ta be 'significant’, & lasger absolute increase in the sisk of default is required for an asset with a higher risk of
defaull on initial recognition than for an asset with a lower risk of default on initiak recognition.

Expected credit fosses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses,
Financial aseets thai are not credit-impaived at the reporting date

Measured as the present valug of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the differcace between the cash flows due 1o the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects o receive),

Financial assets that are credit-impaired ot the reporting date
Measuted as the difference belween the gross carrying amount and the presant value of estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective Interest rate. Any adjustment is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss as an impaitment gain or Joss.
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Summary of significant accounting polleies (contfinned)

Fi ial insir s { it
Presentation of expected credit losses

Loss allowances for financial assets measured al amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets and is charged to the statement of profit or loss or the statement of other comprehensive income
as applicable.

Whrite - off

The gross varrying ameunt of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there.
is no realistic prospest of recovery, This is genetaily the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off, However, finemeial assels that are written of( conld still be subject to enforcemnent astivities in
order to comply wilh the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Derivalive financial instruments and bedging

The Company uses derivative financial instruments as wading investments to hedge ils risks associated with
interest rate, forsign currency, and cammodity price fluctuetions and also to setisfy the requirements of its
customers. Derivative financial insiruments are initinlly recognised a1 fair value on Ihe daie on which »
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasiired at fair value, Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fait valus is positive and as Lisbilities when the fair value is negative.

Any paing or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge sccounting
nre taken directly to the statement of profit or Ioss,

The Company applies hedge accounting only if all of the following conditions are met:

o There is formal designation and written documentation at the inception of the hedge;

+ There is ‘an economic relationship® between the hedged item end fie hedging instrument;
The effect of credit risk does not *dominate the value changes® fhat result fram that economic relationship;
and

s The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulling from the quantity of hedged item
{hat the entity aciually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entily actwally uses to
hedge that quantity of hedged itcn.

For the purpase of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

» Hedges of the exposure to changes in fair value of recognised assets or liabilitics or firm commitments {(fair
valog hedge); or

+ Hedges of highly probable fature cash Mows attributable to a recognised asset ar liability, or a forecasted
mansaction (cash flow hedge),

Al the inception of & hedge relationship, the Company formally desig and d ts the hedge relationship
to which the Company wishes (o apply hedge accounting and fhe risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge, The documentation includes identification of the hedging instument, the hedged item
or wansaclion, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the bedging Instrument’s
ffectivencss in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged jtem’s fair value or cash flows attributable to
the hedged rigk, The d tion also insludes the hedge ratio and potential sources of ineffectiveness.
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4.

Summary of siguificant secoanting poticles ¢ btved)
Financial Ingtruments (continted)

Perlvative financial instrwuments and hedging (corntinved)

£l

Hedges which meet the strict eriteria for hedge ing Bre ace d for as

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify e fair value hedges are recorded in the
profit or Joss account, together with any changes in the fair value of the bedged asset or liability that are
aliributable to the hedged risk.

[f the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the catrying amount of s hedged
itern for which the effective interest method is used {s amortised to profit or loss account over the period 1
matarity.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the Fair value of derivatives that sre designated and qualify as cash fiow
hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised lmmediately
in the profif or loss.

Ammounts recognised as OCI ave fransferred to the profit or loss account when the hedged transaction affects the
profit or loss account, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a
forecast sale accurs. When the hedged item 4+ the coat of a non-finkncial asaet or non-financial liability, the
amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial cartying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

When a hedping instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longes meets the criteria for hedge sccounting,
any cumulative gain or loss existing it equily at that fime remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
tr jon is ultimately recognised in the profit or loss acconnt. When # forecast transaction is no longer

expectod to oceur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reparted in equity is immediatcly transferred o the profit
or logs,

The Company enlered into a devivative financial insirumens to mansge its exposure to interest rate risk, which
include interest rate swaps. Further details of desivative fi ial instr are disclosed in note 19,

The Company considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a collective
level, Al individually significant assets are individuslly assessed for impairment, Those found not to be
impaited nre then collectively assessed for any impaimen! that has been incwred but not yat individually
identified. Assets that are nat individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment. Collective
assessnicnt is carsied out by companying together all assets with similer risk characteristics,

In ing collective impairment, the Company uses historical information on the timing of recoveries and the
amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and credit conditions are such that the
actual Josses are likely to be preater or lesser than suggested by historicsl frends,

An impairment loss is calcutated as the differcnce between an asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows diseaunted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized
in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic
prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If ihe amount of impainnent loss
subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring &fler the impairment
was recognized, then the provionsiy recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or foss.



RURAL AREAS ELECTRICITY COMPANY SAOC

24

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

4,

Summary of significant sccounting policies (contnued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, all bank balances and short-term deposits with a
maturity of three months or less from the date of placement are considered to be cash equivalents,

Tnventories

Inventories ate stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Costs comiptise purchase costs and where
applicable, direct labor costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing (he inventories 10 their
present location and condition, Cost is calculated principally using the weighted average method. An allowance
is made for sfow moving and obsolete inventory items where necessary, based on nianagement’s assessment.

Provision for employees® henefits

A liability is recognized for benefits aceruing to emplayees in respect of wages, salaties and annual leave when
it is probable that settlesnent will be requived and they are capable of being measured reliably.

Provision for employee benefits is sccrued having regard to the requirements of the Oman Labor Law 2003 as

ded or in ) with the terms and conditions of the employment comrmct with the employees,
whichever is higher. Employee entitlements 1o annual leave are recognized when they aceme to employees and
an accrual is made for the estimated liability arising &s a resali of services rendered by employees up to the
repnrting date. These accruals are included in curcent liabifities, while that relating to end of service benefits ia
disclosed as s non-current lability.

End of service benefit for Omani employees are contributed in accordance with the terms of the Secial
Securities Law 1991 and Civil Sexvice Employees Pension Fund Law. Gratuity for Omaei employees who
transferred from the Ministry of Housing, Eleciricity and Water on 1 May 2005 s caleulated based on the ierms
agreed between the Holding Company and the Government. An accrual has been made and 18 classified vs 2
non-current linbility in the statement of financial pogition.

In accordance with the provisions of JAS 19, Employee Benelils, managemen| catries ouf ah exertise Lo assess
the present value of the Company’s obligations as of the reporting dale, in respect of employees® end of service
benefits payable to determine whether it is not materially different from the provision made. Under this method,
an assessment is made of an employee's expected service period with the Company and the expected basic
salary 2t the date of leaving the service, discounted over the period of remaining expueted period using the
country’s risk free rate.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the statemnen! of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as & resull of @ past event and if is probable that it will result in an outflow of economic benefit (hat
can be reliably estimatad,

The amount recognized as & provision is the best estimate of the consideration required o settle the present
obligation at reporting date, laking into aceount the risks and uncertainties surronnding the obligation. Where a
provision js measured using the cash {lows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount js the
present value of those ¢cash flows. Where some or ali of the economic benefits tequired to seitle a provision are
expecied to be tecovered from third party, the receivable is recopnized as an gsset if it is virtually certain that
refmbursement will be received and the amount of he receivable can be measured reliably,

Gavernment suhsidy

The Government of the Suilanate of Oman has fuoded the excess of econnmic cosls over customer and other
tevenue within (he Electricity and Related Water Sector. This funding is included in revenue. Tha Company
recognizes the subsidy when (e right to receive the snbsidy is established.
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Summary of signiftcant accounting puolicies (continued)

Government grants

Grants from the Government are recogmized at their fair value where there i3 a reazsonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized in profit or loss over the period necessary 10
maich them with the costs that they ave intended to compensate,

Government grants relating to construction of assets are included in defered revenue within liabilities and are
credited o profit or loss on & stright line basis over the expected usefu] lives of relaled assels.

Finance income
Finance incetne is accounted for on accrval basis based on effective inferest rate method.
Forelgn eurrency

[tems included in the Company®s financial stasements are measured using Rials Omani which is the cuvrency of
the Sultanele of Oman, being the ecenomic environment in which the Company operates (the functional
currency}. The financial statements ate prepared in Rials Omani, rounded to the nearest thonsand.

Foreign ¢urreney transactions are tramslated into the fonctional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the transection datc, Foreign exchenge gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transaelions and
from the translation at reporting date, exchange rates of monetary assets and lisbilitles denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in profit or loss. At the end of each. reporting period, monetary assets and lHabilities
denominated in foreign cumencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Borrowing costs

Borowing ¢osts directly altributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying are added to
the cost of those assets, vntil such time a5 the assets are substantislly ready for (heir intended use or sale.
Tovestment income catned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditurs en
qualifying assets is deducted fom the borrewing costs eligibie for capitalization.

All other botrowing costs sre recognizad in the profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxntion

Income tax is calculated as per the fiscal regulations of the Sultanate of Oman,

Cutrent tex is the expected lax payable on the raxable income for the vear, usmg 1he tax rates enacted or
substantially a1 the reporting date, and any adjustment fo income tax payable in respect of previous period.

Deferred tax is provided using the Hability method, providing for temporary difforences between the catrying
amounts of assets and lisbilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts wsed for income tax purposes.
Deferred tax is caloulated on the basis of the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is
realized or the Liahilily is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the reporting date. The tax effects on the temporary differences are disclosed under non-current liabilities as
deferred tax,

A deferred tax asset is recognized onty 1o the extent that it is probable that future laxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses and credits can be utilized. The catrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed a1 reposting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realized,
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Summary of significant accounting pollcles (continuerd)
‘Taxation (continyed)

Deferved (ax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off curent lax assess
ggainst current iax liabilitics and when they relaie 1o income faxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends 1o seltle its curment 1ax assels and liabilitics oo a nel basis.

Current and deferred 1ax is recognized as an expense or benefit in profit or loss except when they relate fo iferns
credited or debited direstly 1o equity, in which case the tax is also recognized direcily in equity.
Revenue from contrgcts with cnstamers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, bow much and when revetue is
recognized,

Before application of [FRS 15, the Company was recoguizing the rev from installation, connection and
melering charges at point of tire. Upon application of TFRS 15, it has becn identified that there is no separaie
distinet performance oblipation on the Company with regard to this revenue stream, and these services cansol
be distinguished from the primury busincss activity of the Compuny i, supply of electricity. Accordingly, these
revenues have been deferred and will be recognized taroughout the useful life of the related assets (i.e. 25 years)

However, under the price control methodology, the installation and connection charges are offered in Maximum
Allowed Revenue (MAR) computation and fo this extont subsidy is reduced. Accardingly, a notional sssel has
to be recorded to offset the impact of related deferred revenus amortization.

Tustallation and connection revenné

Insiallation ang iom p the fee collected for the activities to provide services to the
customer who have contracied for supply of electricity. As per new IFRS 15 the installation and connection
revenue are regarded as an advance payraent for future eleciricity supnly and should be recognized as revenuve
over the peciod of time.

Assets sransfer from customers

Previously recorded sevenue under IFRIC 1§ -  Assets trangferred from customers*, has now been covered under
IFRS 15, and recogniticn of revenus at point of time ie. when asset is received from customer, i$ na loager
applicable. Under [FRS 5, it has been identified thal there is no separate porformance obligation with respect
to custornet-conttibuted assets other than supply of electricity in the future. Therefore, consideration received
{ne Fair value of the assets transferred) shauld be treated as part of the transaction price (non-cash consideration)
and revenue to be meagnized as and when electrieity is provided 10 the customer in future.

Aceordingly, this revenve has been deferred and will be recognized throughout the useful life of the relevant
ngsats transferved from customers.

The Company has vstimated the average assets life to be 25 years based on the useful life of the Installation and
connection asset. Following the adoption of IFRS |5 the Campany recogmizes the fee over 25 years, offective
from | Japuary 2018,
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Summary of siguiflcant accounting policies {contined?

Revenue [rom contracts with customeys {continted)
The Company recognises revenue from contracis with cusfomers basad on (he five step model:

Step 1 Identify the contract(s} with a customer: A contract is defined as en agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteriz for every contract that must be
met.

Step 2 Idenify the performance obligations in the coutract; A performance obligation is a unit of account
and a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer = good or service to the customer.

Step 3 Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects 10 be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the coniract: For a contract thet has
more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation in an amount that depicts the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchamge
for satisfying vach perfarmence obligation.

Step 5 Recognise revenne when {or as) the Company satisfies 2 performance obligation.

The Company satisfies 2 performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

1. The customer simulncously receives and comsumes the bemefits provided by the Company's
performance as and when the Company performs; or

2. The Company's performance crenles or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset ig created
or enhanced; or

3. The Company's performance does not create an asset with an aliernative use to the Company and the
Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

TFor performance obligations where none of the abave conditions are met, revenue is recagnised al the point in
time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Varinble consideration

Variable consideration amounts are estimated al either their expected value or most likely amount and included
in revenue 1o the extent that it is highly probable that the revenue will not reverse,

Signiflcant finaueing component

The Company evaluates significent financing component, if the period between cuslomer payment and the
transfer of goods/ services {botl: for advance payments of paymenls in arrcars) is mose than one year, The
Clompany adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the time value of money using an appropriate interest
rate reflesting the credit risk.
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Sumumary of significant accounting polleies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with custorners (eontinved)

Contract modification

A contract modification ocowrs when the Company and the customer approve a change in the contrsct that either
creaies new enforceable rights and obligations or changes the existing enforceable rights and obligations.
Revenue related 1o a madification is not recognised unil it 18 approved. Approval can be in writing, oral, or
implied by customary business practices.

The Company treats the contrect modification as a separate contract if it results in the addition of a separate
petformance obligation and the price reflects the standalone sslling price of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, a modification {including those that only affect the transaction price) is accounted for as an
udjustment to the original coniract, cither prospectively or through a sumulative catch-up adjustment.

The Company accounts for @ modification prospectively if the goods or services in the modification are distincl
from those transferred before the modification. Conversely, the Compary accounts for a modification through
a cwnwlative catch-up adjustment if the goods or services in the modification are not distinct and are part of &
sinple pecformance obligation that is only partially satisfied when the contract is modificd,

Cost af odtairment and firlfilment
The Cc capitelises i nial costs ko obtain a contrect with a customer except if the amortisation petiod

for such costs is less than ane year.

1f the costs incurred in fulfilling a comiract with a customer are not in the scape of other guidance - e.g. inventory,
intangibles, or property, plant and equipment - then the Company recogtrises an asset only if the fulfilment costs
meet the following criteria;

» Relate directly o an existing contract or specific anticipated contract;

»  Generate o enhanca resources that will be used to satisfy performance pbligatiens in the fisture; and

2 Are expected to be recovered.

If the costs incurred to fulfil a contract are in the scope of other guidance, then Company accounts for such costs
using the other guidance.

The Company amortises the asset recognised for the costs to obtain and/or fulfil a contract on a systematic basis,
consistent with the pattern of transfer of the good or secvice to which the asset relales, In the case of an
impairmext, the Company recognises these losses to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the
recoverable amount.

Revenue fious efectviclty distribriton and supply

Revenue represents fair value of income receivable in the ordinary course of business from the sale of electricity
to the Govemment, commercial and residentéal cusfomers within the Company's distribution network, including
the unbilled revenue during the period fram the last billing date 10 the end of the reporting peried and other
electricity relaled revenue,

Other electricity related revenug tncludes tender fees, deferred revenue recognition relating to installation and
connection charges,
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Summiary of significant accounting pollcies {contimied)

Reveoue feom contracts with customers (continued)

Revenue from electricity distriburion acd supply (continued)

Totel revenue in excess / (deficit) of the maximum allowed by the regulatory farmula in accordance with the
licensing requirements is defeared to the subscquent year and is showm as other current liabilities / (other current
25901s).

Customer confributions

Effective from 1 July 2009 till 31 December 2017, the Company had adopted IFRIC 18, whereby customer
contribulions towards the cost of property, plant and equipment were recognized in the profit or loss in
accordence with the provigions of IFRIC 18. Income from customer contribution has been recognized on acerual
basis as per IFRS 15 effective from 1 January 2018.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified ag cquity.
Critieal aceonnting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates, Tt abso requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s
aceounting policies, The Company makes estimates and assumnptions concerting the fature, The resulting
acconnting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results,

Estimates and judgments are continwously eveivated end are based on hisiorical experience and other factors,
including expectations of Future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas
requiring & higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to ihe financial slatements are set out below:
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Critlcal accounting estimates {confintied)

Deprevinion
Depreciation is changed so as ta write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, The caloulation of
useful lives {s based on gement's t of various factors such gs the operating cycles, the

maintenance programs, and normal wear and tear using ifs best estimates.

Provision for impairment - Measuremeni of the expected credit loss allowance

Loss atlowances for financial assets are hased on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates, The
Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impaitment cateulation,
based en the Company's pasl experience and historical data, existing matket conditions as well as forward
locking estimates at the end of each repotting period. Detpils of the key assumptions and inputs used are
i d in the ing policy sbove.

Al for inveniory ebsolescence

Allowance for inventory cbsolescence is based on management’s assessment of various factars such as usability,
the maintenance programs, and nommal wear and tear wsing its best available estimates.

Taxution

The Compony hus considered revenue arising from custoreer contributed assets recognized under IFRIC 183,
*fransfers of assets from customers' ag taxable income based on management discussions with the tax
authorities,

Revenue recognition

Due¢ to the occurrence of events, a certain portion of the Company’s revenue is estimated rather than based on
gctual billing, Detailed computations were made on the basis of pre-determined billing patierns and unit usage
retated criteria in order to arrive a1 the estimated revenue from thase customers where the Company is unable
to chisin meter readings. If the actual meter readings for such cwstomers differ from the edtimases, the
Company's tevenue for the period would be impacted to the extent of such differences.

Hedge accownting
The Company uscs interest rate swaps 1o hedge fhe interest mie risk in respect of LIBOR from: its floating-rate
loans denorainated in US Dollars,

The Company delermines the amount of the exposure to which it applies hedge accounting by essessing the
potential impact of chunges in interest tates on the future cash flows from its floating-rate loaus denominated in
US Dwollars.

By using derivative financial instruments 10 hedge exposures to changes in interest rates, the Company exposes
itself 1o credit risk of the counierparties to the derivatives, which is not offset by the hedped items, The
Company minimizes counterparty ctedit risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high-
quality counterparty banks with high credit ratings.

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease tern, mauagement considers all facls and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exervise an extension option, ot not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (oc
1ot terminated). Potential future cash outflows have not been included in the lease liability beosuse it is not
reasonebly certain that the leases will be extended (or nor terminated).
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6. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

The Compaty’s property, plant and equipment are constructed on lands leased from Ministry of
Housing, Government of Sultanate of Oman under usufruct agreements.

Depreciation and amortization charge for the year has been allocated between the cost of sales and
general and administrative expenses as follows:

2012 2018
Depreciation charge for the year RO 000 RO 000
Property plant and equipment 13,583 11,982
Right-of-use assets 5,534 . -
Cost of Saley (note 26) 19,117 11,982
Property plant and equipment 683 290
Intangible assets 675 65
General and administrative expenses (note 27) 1,358 355
20,475 12,337
6. (a)Intangible assets
Cost
Cost- opening 568 558
Additions 363 10
Transfer fram CWIP 1,042 -
Cost- cloging _ 1,973 o 568
Accumnlated pmortisation
Amortisation - opening 493 426
Charge for the yesr 675 L)
Amortisgtion - closing 1,166 ) 401
Carrylng amount 807 77

Intangible essets mainly cover the sofiware which are used in the business. This mainly inclndes the cost of
the ERF system, billing system «te, These assets are amorlised over their useful life of 5 years.

7. Right of use assets

Power plant Land Building  Vehicles Total
ROW00 RO000  ROM000 RO'0G0 RO'000
As at 1 Janvary 2019
Initial recognition an adoption 62,135 1,569 - 229 63,933
of IFRS' 16 (note 3.1)
Additions - 1,489 o4 - 1,353
Depreciation {5,178) (139 {10 207) (5,534)
31 December 2019 56,957 2,91% 54 22 59,052
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8.

Inventories

Spares and consumables
Fuel
Allowance for inventory obsolescence

Movement in allowance for inventory obsolescence

At 1 January
Amount of provision during Lhe year

At 31 December

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables from the

Public Autberity for Electricity and Water (PAEW)
Trade receivables from private customers

Trade receivables from Government customers
Provision for impairment

Net trade receivables

Amount due from related parties (note 32)
Provision for impainment

Advances to contractors and suppliers
Prepayments

Govemnment subsidy receivable

K-factor receivable

Other receivables

Movement in expected eredit losses

At ] January as stated
Tmpact of initial application of [FRS 9

At | Janmary as restated

Amount of expected credit losses charged during the year

Al 31 December

34
2019 2018
RO'000 RO’000
6,688 7875
5,287 4,720
(,151) (4,305)
7,724 7,799
4,805 4,523
(554) 282
4,251 4,805
2,017 3413
3,168 7,902
2,720 1,737
@I (2,318)
9,528 10,234
3,687 399
(206) (206}
2,748 2,973
126 381
59,683 25,665
(1,716) 1,902
2,844 3,179
76,604 44,537
3,024 1,394
- 1,270
3,024 2,664
550 360
3,583 1,024
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9.

10.

11.

12,

Trade and other receivables (continued)

Management believes that as of 31 December, trade receivebles of RO 9.527 million
(2018 - RO 10.028 million) were fully collectable.

K-factor recaivable represents revenue receivable or payable on account of excess or short of actual
regulated revense over maximum allowed as per price control formula.

Manapgement believes that the other receivables classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets. :

Short term deposits

Shorl term deposit has maturity of six to nine months and carry an intersst rates of 3% to 3.75% per
arnum (2018: Nil)

Cash and cash equivalents

201% 2018

RO 00 RO 00

Call deposits 14,741 4,206
Currend accounits 3,885 32,619
Cash on hand 16 14
18,642 36,839

Bank call deposits carty an interest rates of 0.75% per annum (2018: 0.75%)

Share capital

The Company’s authorised, issued and peid-up capita! consists of 100,000,000 shares of RO 1/- each,
The statement of financial position restructuring carried out by the company was approved by the
extra ordinary general meeting held on the 12 June 2018, It was decided to enhance the capital 1o
100 Million. The amount has been transferred from the shareholders’ funds.

The details of the shareholders are as follows:

Percentage of Number of 201¢ 208
shargholding  sheres issued RO RO
Electricity Holding Company SAOC 99,99% 99,990,004 99,950,000 99,990,000
Wama Shared Services LLC 0.005% 5,000 5,000 5,000
Nema Institwte of Competence 0.005% 5,000 5,000 5,000

Development LLC

100.00% 100,000,000 100,000,000 (00,000,000
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13,

14,

15.

Legal reserve

Article 132 of the Commercial Companies Law of 2019 requires that 10% of a Company's net profit
10 be ttansferred to a non-distributable legal reserve until the amount of the legat reserve becomes
emqual to one-third of the Company's fully-paid share capital.

2019 2018

RO ‘000 RO “000

Ag at 1 Januvary 2019 1,178 167
Add: transfer during the year i 477 1,011
As at 31 December 2019 1,655 1,178

{ieneral reserve

In acoordance with the Company’s policy, an amount not exceeding 20% of the profit after transfer
to legal reserve should be teansforred to o general reserve unti] the balance of the general reserve
reaches one half of the share capital,

As at 1 January 2019 2,070 250

Add: transfer during the year 858 1820

As at 31 December 2019 ] 2,928 2,070
Shareholder’s funds

Faollowing the implementation of a decision of the Scclor Law and in accordance with the transfer
scherie, the Electricity Holding Company SAOC (the “Holding Company™) received certain ussets
and liabilities from the Ministry of Housing, Electricity and Water (MHEW} on the transfer date
1 May 2005.

Subsequently, part of the assets and Labilities were transferred to the Company. The value of the net
nssets transferred and for regulated assets in priar vears certain contributions i3 represented in the
books as shareholder’s funds. There is no contractual obligation to repay this amouwnt and there ave
no fized repayment terms.

The statement of financial positien restructuring carried out by the company was approved by the
extra ardinary general meeting held on the 12 June 2018. It was decided to enhance the capital to
100 Million. The amount has been transferred from the sharehobders® funds.

Shareholder’s funds 1,58¢ 101,089
Transferred to share capital - (99,500)
1,589 1,589
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16.

17.

Term foan

In 2018, the Company obtained a term [oan of USD 400 million (approximately RO 154 million)
from a consortium of banks repayable over a period of 7.75 years. The repayments starled from
March 2019, The inlerest is payable each quarter and the first interest was paid at the end of Q3
2018,

The team bank loans are secured by negative pledge, that the Company shall not create or permit
any to subsist any security over any of its assets. Also, shall not sell, transfer or otherwise dispose
any of its assets on terms whereby they are or may be lease to or re-acquired by the Company or
any of the Company’s receivables on recourse terms,

2019 2018
RO 000 RO 000
Term loan 137,061 154,004
Less: unamoriized transaction cost (1,235) _ (48
Carrying value of term loan 135,826 152,563
Transaction cost
Opening balance 1,441 1,544
Less: transaction costs amortized during the year {208y (103)
Unamortized transaction cost at the end of the year 1,235 1,441
Current and non-current portion of term loan
Current portion of the term loan 20,556 16,735
Non-current portion of the term joan 115270 135828
135,826 152,563
Provisions
Non-current
Employee benefils — gratuity 1,266 1,345
Current
Employee benefits - ieave encashment 563 569
Movement in provision for employee benefity — gratuity
At 1 January 1,345 1,375
Charge for the year 52 42
Payments made during the ycar (131) (72)

At 31 December 1,266 1,345
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17. Provisions (continved)
Movement n provision for employee benefits — leave encashment
2019 2018
RO *000 RO 000
At 1 January 569 519
Charge for the year 37 61
11
Payments made during the year pame (43) N,
563 569
At 31 December
18. Deferred tax liability

Deferred income taxes are caleulated on 8!l temporary differences using a prineipal tax rate of 15
%4 (2018 - 15%). The net deferred tax liability / {assets) in the statement of financial position and
the net deferred tax charge in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
atiributable to the following items:

Charge/ Mehar
A1 December 2019 At (credls) for the  Comprelencive At
1 Janoary year Income 31 Depember
Asets RO 000 RO 000 RO 00 RO 000
P for vegnlatory deferred {265) - - (2685}
LERS 9 adjustments (191) - - a9
Right of use - net of feasc liability (IFRS - (284) - 284)
16)
P for i v obsol (395 83 - 312)
Allowance for douiful debts (459 (84 - 437
Usufruct charges acerua) (222) (38) (260)
Fair value hedging veserve — QCI - - (11) (911)
1,516) (323) 911) {2,760)
Liabltity
Accelerated tax depreciation 15,028 2,973 - 20,001
Net deforred tax labiMey 16,502 2,650 o11) 18,241
11 December 2018 At (Credit) / chavge for the At
1 Janoury yenr December
Asstls RO 000 RO 000 RC 000
Pravision for regulatory def . (265} (285)
IFRE 9 adjustments (201 10 {190
Provision for mvenlory obsolescence (353 (42) (395)
Allowance for doubtful debts (399) (54 (453}
Usufiuct charges acerual {181} (41) (222)
{1.134) (392} (1.526)
Liability
Aceelerated tax deprexiation 15,135 2,883 ) _‘IE,QEE
Net deferred fux lisbility 14,001 2,501 16,502
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19.

20.

Deferrved revenue

Deferrad revenue represcnts Govemment funding towards the cost of property, plant and equipment
for the projects siarted before 1 January 2009, These contributions are deferved over the life of the
refevant property, plant and equipment. Funding from government towards the cost of property,
plant and equipment represents unconditional grent received / receivable from govemment /
goverament authorities to the construction of the assets.

Deferred revenue recognized during the year amousted to RO 2.9 million (2018 - RO 2.8 million)
in profit or loss.

The Deferred Revenne with respect to the amortization of connection and installation charges as
well Bs the regnlatory MAR adjustment for capex vader spending is shown under deferred revenue.

31 December 2019 Non-
current Total
Current RO ‘00D RO ‘000
Deferred revenue - Govt. sponsored projects 4,128 86,286 20,414
Deferred revenue - IFRS is a adjustments 69 1,470 1,539
Regulatory asget base - MAR adjustment S— 235 936
At 31 December 4,197 88,602 92,889
31 December 2018 Non-
current Total
Current RO ‘000 RO *DOD
Deferred revenue - Govt. sponsored prajects 2,862 57,439 60,301
Deferred revenue - IFRS is a adjustmetits 69 1,388 1457
Regulatory asset base - MAR adjustment — __ 936 336
At 3t December 2934 LR sae
Contract liabilities
2019 2018
RO 000 RO 000
Coniract liabilities 46 13
Less: current portion 2 .
Non-current portion 46 i3
Ner movement in contract labilities
Opening 13 -
Al transition period 1 January 2013 - 4
Net movement 33 9
46 13
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21, Fair value of derivative financia] instrument
2012 2018
RO 008 RG 000
At beginning of the year -
Change in fair value during the year (6,079 -
Atend of the year (6,073) -
Lesg: related deferred tax 211 -
Fair vatue of hedge- net of tax (5,162} -
Fair valug loss during the year (net of tax) (5,162 -
Notiomel by term to maturity
Notional 1-12  lupfos Over
Fair velue amount total months year 5 years
RO00Q° RO000* RO000° RO000 RO000°
31 Decentber 2019
Interest rate swaps (6,073) 137,061 20,759 116302 -
22. Lease Uabilities
2019 2018
RO 000 RO G0¢
Maturity analysis-contractual undiscounted cash flow
Within one year 8,100 -
Latcr than one year but not later than five years 40,397 .
More than five years 42,889 =
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 91,386 -
Future finance charges (29,538 -
Lease liability 61,847 -
Lease liabilities included in the statement of finanecial
position
Current 3,693 -
Non-current 58,154 -
61,847 -
Amount recognised in profit or loss
Interest o lease Habilities {4,669) -
Depreciation of leased assets (5,534) -
(10,203) -

Amount presented in statement of cash flow

Total cash outflow for leases

(3,581)
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2). Trade and other payables

Creditors for capital projects

Acerals and other payables

Suppliers and contractors’ payables
Amounts due to related parties (note 32}

24. Short term borrowing

Short term borrowing

41

2019 2018

RO *000 RO '000
18,589 20,471
17,646 17,760
11,443 4,264
5081 4,610
52,759 47,105
30,000 -

The Company has availed working capital facilities to the extent of RO 30 Million from local banks

at interest rate ranging from 3.75% to 4,5%.

15, Revenue
Government subsidy received
Electricity sales to private customers
Electricity sales to Government customers
Waler sales to Public Authority for Electricity and Weter (PAEW)
Other revenue

Revenue for MAR actualization

118,667 102,507
14,352 13,169
5,729 5,294
4,005 5,178
611 244
143,366 126,392
a (1,764)

Revenue in excess of the maximum allowed as per
price control formula (3,618) 1,038
139,748 125,666

The revenue received from cormection and installation charges amounts to RO 161,477 during the
year, Afier amortization as per [FRS 15, the amounts recognized in the current year is RO 79,741,

26. Cost of sales
Fuel consumption 51,204 50,046
Depreciation (note 6} 19,117 11,982
Operation and maintenance contract fee 8,184 8,108
Spares and consumable expenses 2,861 2,558
Maintenance and repairs expenses 4,234 4,497
Equipmenl hire charges 1,332 1,007
Electricity purchases 17,695 15,685
Other direct costs 1,112 240

105,739 T 94123
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27. General and administrative expenses 31. Taxation
2019 2018
RO '000 RO 000 Income tax is provided as per the provisions of the “Law of Income Tax on Companies™ in the
Sultanate of Oman after adjusting for items which are non-assessable or disallowed. The tax rate
Staff costs (note 28) 10,613 10,189 applicable to the Company is 15% (2018 - 15%). The deferred tax on all temporary differences has
Service expenses 3,223 3,607 been calenlated and dealt with in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Commission expense 1,171 768
Depreciation (note 6) 683 290 The taxation charge for the year is comprised of:
Amortisation of intengible assets (note 6) 675 a5 2019 2018
Directors’ remuneration and sitting fees (note 32) 51 56 ROG00 RC000
Other expenses and %2 Dreferred tax cherge in reepect of current year (note 18) 2,650 2,501
16,790 15,907
Accounting profit before tax 7419 12,610
Commission represents amount paid to Oman National Engineering and Investment Company
SAOG (ONEIC) and Natipnal Electricity Centre (NEC) for undenaking custommer meter reading and .
billing services snd provision of cellection facilities. Tax on scaounting profit before tax at 15% L113 1,892
Tax impact of permanent difference 8 198
28. Staff costs Unrecognized deferred tax asset on tax losses 1,529 41
Salaries and wages 5,658 5,534
Other allowances and benefits 4,903 4,613 Tax charge for the year 2,650 2,501
End of service henefits {(note 17} 52 42
10,613 10,189 in the currert year after the adjustment of expenses as per lax law, the company is in tax loss position

accordingly no income (ax has been recorded in the current year. Deferred tax assets of RO 2.75
millicn on carry forward tax losses has not been recognised due o vacertainty of taxable profits in
fture to realise deferved tax asset prior to its expiry.

29, Other income

Amortization of deferred revenue 2,989 2,780 ) . ) -
Sale oii?;:rap ¢ o ’ 18 19 Tax assessments for the years 2013 to 2018 are pending with the Oman taxation authorities. The
Sale of forms and tenders 121 B3 Management of the Campany believes that additional taxes, if any, related to the open tax year would
Gain / (loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment 18 (246) ot be significant to the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2015
i 1,369 1.3 . g
RAgRmEne } B The Company has carried forward tax losses of RO 18,339 million as at 31 December 2019 (2018 -
4,535 4,019 RO 14.75 million).

. R d i
30. Finance income / (cost) 32. Relsated parties

Related parties comprise the shareholders, directors, key management personniel and business entjties

Finance income; in which they have the ability to control or exercise significant influence in financial and operating
Interest in bank deposits 458 188 decisions.

Finnnee costs: The Company maintains balances with the related parties which arise in the normal course of
Bank interest and charges (14,234} (6,873) business, Qutstanding bulances at year end ace unseevred and settlement occurs n cash,

Following is the summary of significant fransactions with related parties during the year:
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32, Related parties (continued)

2019 2018
Expenses RO *000 RO 000
QOman Power &Waier Procurement Company SAOC 20,679 11,802
Numo Iestitute of Competence Development 205 309
Nama Shared Services — SLA charges 418 356
Distribution Code Review Panel (JCRP) shared expenses 433 322
Electricity Holding Company SAQC 8,567 2479

30,302 15,268

(i) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personne] are those persons wlhe have authority and respousibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activilies of the Company, dircetly or indirectly, including any director
{whether executive or otherwise). The compensation for key management personnel during the year
is as follows:

Salary and other short tenn benefits 2,042 1,846
End of service bepefits 478 512
Directors’ remuneration and sitting fees {note 27) 51 56

2,571 2,414

(i) Amouut due from related parties (uote 9)
Related parties gader common ownership

Oman Power and Wster Procurement Cornpany SAQOC 206 206
Muscat Electricity Distribution Company SAOC 73 52
Mazoon Electricity Company SAQC 10% 43
Dhofar Power Company SAOC 95 74
Majan Electricity Company SAOC 69 7
Omap Blectricity Trensmission Company SAQOC 2 2
Al Ghubrah Power & Desalination Company SACC 7 7
Wadi Al Jizzi Power Compmy SAOC 2 2
Electricity Holding Campany SAQC 3,124 1

3,687 39%

(iii) Amounts due to related parties {uote 23)

Electricity Holding Company SAQC 2,518 2,028
Muscat Electricity Distribution Company SAQC 2 2
Oman Power & Water Procurement Company SAOC 2,460 2,366
Nama Institute of Compeience Development LLC 59 120
Nama Shares Services LLC k) | 94
Oman Electricity Transmission Co. SAQC 1 =

5,081 4,610

These balances represent costs incutred by the Company on behalf of other entities of the group.
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3.

34,

35

Proposed dividend

The Board of Directars of the Company at their meeting held on 27 February 2020 has preposed a
dividend af 8% on the share cepital of RO 100 Million aggregating RO 8,000,000 (2018 — dividend
a1 7% on the share capital aggregating RO 7,000,000 was proposed &nd paid as dividend). This
dividend is subject to the spproval of the Company's shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

Commitments
019 2008
RO 000 RO 000
Capital commitments 3,064 7870
Operating lease commitments
Less than 1 year - 360
Shipping guarantes ) 2 2

Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose if to a variety of financial risks: market tigk (including price risk,
fareign curency risk and interest vate risk), liquidity risk and credit risk, However, the Company’s
overall tisk management programme focusss on the unpredictability of financial markets and secks
te minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Credit risk management is carried aut by the Company and liguidity riek and market risk by the
halding company’s treaswy depariment under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
Board provides written principles for overall risk management, 2s well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as forelgn exchange risk, interest rate risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Market risk

Price visk

The permitted teriff (prices) for distribution of eleciricity is delermined either by long term
agreements with the customer or under the Permitted Tariff Regulations issued by the Public
Authority for Elcelricity and Water (PAEW). Hence, the Company is not subject to significant price
risk.

Foreign exchange visk

Foreign exchange risk arises when fiture comrmercial transactions or recognized assets or liabilities
are denomingted in a currency that is not the eatity’s functional currency, The Company is exposcd
ta foreign exchange risk srising from currency exposures primarily with respect o the US Dollar.
The Rial Omani is pegged to the US Dollar. Since most of the forsign currency transactions are in
S Dollars or other currenvies linked to the US Dollar, management believes that the exchange rate
fluctuations would have an insignificant impact on the Company’s pre-tax profit,
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35.

Financial risk management (continued}

Market risk (continued)

Tnterest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from term loan which carcy an interest rate of 5.845% per
annum. The Company carries out periodic analysis of its interest rate exposure and reassesses the
source of borrowings and renegotiates interest rates at terms favorable to the Company.

The interest rate on the Company’s term loan is subject to change as and when renewed. The
Company partially uses interest swaps as hedge the variability in cash flows attributable to interest
rate risk. The Company analyses ils inlerest ratz exposurc on a reguiar basis and reassesses the source
of borrowings and renegotiates interest rates at terms favourable to the Company.

After taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, a change of +/- [% in interest rates at the
reporting date would have increased {decreased) equity and profit or loss by RO 1,370 K (2018: RO
1,540 K). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange
rates, remain canstant.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash end the availability of
funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities, Management maintains flexibility
in lunding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors the
Compeny’s liquidity by forecasting the expected cash flows, The table below avalyses the
Company’s financial liabilities that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity grouping
based on the remaining period at the reporting date fo the contracinal maturities date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the cont 1 vndi ] cash flows, Balances due within lwelve
months equal their canrying balances, as the impacl of discounting is not significant.

Crrying Contractual 1-3 Imonths  More than one
3 December 20192 Amount cashilow months 1o L year year
RO RO 00 RO*000 RO'00D RO*000
Intarast bearing
Long term botrowings 135,826 131261 5,190 15,569 116,302
Sho et borrowings 30,000 30,765 - 30,769 -
Lease liabilitics 61,847 91,386 - 8,100 83,286
Non-interest beariog
Trade and ather payables 52,758 22,759 32,523 10,236
280,432 F11.975 37,713 T T4 199,588
31 December 2018
Loterest bearing
Long lemm boreowings 152,503 154,004 4,235 11105 137,064
Nen-interest bearing

Trade and other payables 49,105 42,105 25208 20807

149,568 201,109 29443 34,602 137,064
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35. Financial risk management {continued)

Credit risk

Crexit risk is the risk of financial loss Lo the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The credit risk of the Company is primarily
attributable to trads and other reccivables, short term deposits and bank halances.

Trade and ather receivables

The Company’s exposurs to credit risk on trade and other receivables is influenced mainly by the
individual characterisiics of each customer including the default risk associated with the industry
and the country, The Company has established credit policies and procedures that are considered
appropriate und commensurate with the nature and size of 1eceivables. Trade receivables primarily
represent amount due from government and private customers. The Company has a significan
concentration of credit 1isk as below:

The exposure 10 credit risk for trade receivablos at the reporting date by type of customer is:

2019 2018

RO*00D ROO00

Public Autherity for Electricity and Water 2,017 3413
Private customers 8,168 7,902
Government customers 2,720 1,737
12,905 13,052

The age of trede raceivables and refated impairment loss at the reporting date is:
1019 2018

Past due Past idue
but aot but not
Gross  Impalrment impalred Gross  Impeirment  impaired
RO’DD0O RO'0DD RO'000 RO'000 RO'0DD RO OG0

Mot past due 1,415 {164) 1,251 1,803 (150) 1,653
Less than | month 1,697 @47 1,450 1,954 {253) 1,659
Past due - 21 to 90 days 2477 477 2,000 2329 (406) 1,823
Past due - 91 10 365 deys 3,394 (932} 2,464 3,766 (801) 2,865
Pasi due above 1 year 390 (LE5T) 1,363 3,200 (1,208) 1,994
12,905 {3,377 9,528 13,0852 (2.818) 10,234

Investment in baok deposits and bank balances

The Campany’s banks accounts are placed with reputed financial institutions with the below credit
rating as per Moody's Iavestor Service Ratings.

2019 2018
Bank RO'000 RO 000

BR&3 23,626 36,823
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35. Financial risk management (continued}

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is on account oft

2019 2018
RO000 ROM000
Trade recaivables 12,905 13,052
Due fro:m related parties 3,687 399
Other receivables 2,844 3,179
Cash at bank 23,626 36,825
43,062 53,455
Categories of financial mstruments
Total carrylug
31 December 2019 Amortized cost armount
RO 00 RO’ 000
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances - 23,642
Loans and receivables
Trade receivables 12,908 12,905
Government subsidy receivable 59,683 59,683
K-factor receivable {1,716} {1,716)
Due from related parties 3,687 3,687
Other receivables o 2,844 2844
Totsl financiel assets 77,403 77,403
Toial carrying
31 December 2018 Amortized Cost amonnt
RO’ 400 RO 000
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances , - 36,839
Loans and receivables
Trade receivahbles 13,052 13,052
Government subsidy receivable 25,665 25,665
K-factor receivable 1,902 1,902
Due from related parties 399 309
Other receivables N 3,179 3179
Total financial asstts 44,197 44,197

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for the abave financial assets as their carrying
amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair values.
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35, Financial risk management (continued}
Credit risk (contined)
Financial liahififies (not measured st fair valwe)
2019 2018
ROMO0D ROQ00
Financial iilghilities held at amortized cost
Long term borrowing 135,826 152,563
Shart term botrowitgs 30,000 -
Creditors for capital projects 18,589 20,471
Accruals and other payables 17,646 17,760
Suppliers and contractors' payebles 11,443 4,264
Amount due 1o related parties 5,081 4,610
218,585 199,668

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for the above financial assets as their carrying
amouats are a reasonable approximation of fair values.

Credit quallty disclosures

Net
1Zmonth or Gross .
G Madel Lifetime ECL.  amount ECL  earrying
amount
Trade receivables Provision matrix Life time 12,005 3,377 9,528
Bank balances Exiemal rating 12 month 23,626 - 23,626

Tor trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL, The Company detetmines the expected credit losses on these items
by using a provision matrix, ¢stimated based on histerical credit Joss experience based on the past
due status of the deblors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of futare
economic conditions, Accordingly, the credit risk profile of these assets is presented based on their
past due statug in terms of the provision matrix,

The Company always messures the loss allowance for tradc receivables al an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using s provision matrix
by reference to past default experience of the debbor and an analysis of the debtor’s carrent financial
position, adjusted for factors that ere specific to the deblors, general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the cument as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date,
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35. Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The following table details the visk profile of trade receivables based on the Company's provision
matrix. As the Company’s historieal credit loss experience show significanily different loss patterns
for different customer segments, i.e. governmen! and private customers {slectricity} and water
customer hence the provision for loss allowance based on past due status is further distinguished
between the Company’s different customer base.

Trade recelvables ECL Government customer — Electricfcy

Net
Gross amoant ECL % carrying
Lifetime ECL amount
31 December 2019 RO 1000 Yo RO ‘000 RO ‘000
Nol past due 345 28.51 98 247
1 - 30 days 408 30.95 126 282
31 - 60 days 330 34.05 112 218
61 —90 days 362 3717 135 227
90-180 days 826 40.93 338 488
180- 365 days 289 42.9 i24 165
Morethan365days 160 4425 71 89
2729 1,004 1,716

Trade receivables ECL private customer - Electricity
Net
Gross amount ECL % carrying
Lifetime ECL amount
31 December 2019 RO “000 % RO ‘000 RO 000
Nol past due 710 6.88 53 7T
1 —30 days 977 11.01 108 R69
31 — 60 days 669 14.28 26 573
&1 — 90 days 652 16.96 113 541
90180 days 1,124 206 231 893
180- 365 days 087 .73 224 763
More than 365 days 2,98¢ 2394 715 2,274
8,168 1,538 6,630
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35, Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (contimed)

‘I'rade receivables ECL Water customer

Gross amount

31 December 2019 RO ‘000
Not pest due 301
1 - 30 days in
31 - 60 days 307
61 - 90 days 156
50-180 days 162
180- 365 days 9
More than 365 days 771

2,017

ECL %

%
4.19
4.1%9
4.80
5.63

10.36
23.1%
100

Trade receivables ECL Governtment customer — Electricity

Gross amount

31 December 2018 RO 000
Not past due 176

1-30 days 351

31 - 60 days 164

61 - 90 days 98
90-180C days 107

180- 365 days 90
Mare than 365 days 551

T 177

Trade receivables ECL private customer — Electricity

Gross amount

31 December 2018 RO ‘000
Not past due 1,189

130 days 1,164

31 ~ 60 days 871
6190 days 589
90-180 days 1,205

180- 365 days 773
More than 365 days 2,111

ECL %

%
28.51
3085
3405
3117
35.62
42.90
4425

ECL %

Y
6.88
11.01
14.28
16.96
19.56
22793
2394

51
Net
carrying
Lifetime ECL amount
RO 000 RO ‘000
13 288
13 298
15 292
9 147
13 149
2 7
il S -
836 1,181
Met
Lifetime ECL.  carrying amount
RO *000 RO “00¢
50 126
109 242
124 240
6 62
44 &3
38 52
467 B4
868 869
Net
Lifetime ECI.  carrying amount
RO 000 RO =000
82 1,107
128 1,036
124 747
100 489
247 058
176 597
201 i,510
1,05 6,844
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35, Financial risk management (continued)
35. Financial risk management {continyed)}

Credit risk (continued)
Capital risk mansgement {comtinued}

Trade receivables ECL Water customer
The Cornpany sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk, The Compeny manages the capital

structure and makes adjusiments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk

Net ol P
Gross amaount ECL % Lifetime BCL.  canying amount characteristics of the underdying assels,

31 December 2018 RO ‘000 % RO 000 RO ‘000 Gearing ratio

Mot past due 433 4.18 18 420 L )

1 - 30 days 436 418 18 a1 Gearing ratio at the year ended was ag follows: 2019 s018

31 - 60 days 216 4,80 10 206 RO *000 RO 000

61 —90 days 150 5.63 11 179

00 Term ioan 135,826 152,563

-180 days 575 13,07 60 515 Skort teem borrowings 30,000

180- 365 days 1,017 2318 237 780 4 N

More than 365 days 538 100 538 - Cash and bank belances {23,642) (36,839)
willasen s 52 22 Net debt 142,184 115,724

b Equity 133,387 140,780

The Company writes off a trade Teceivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in Debt + equity 2785 256504
scvere financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtar has Gearing ratio 51.60% 45.12%
been placed under liquidation or has entered Juto bankrupicy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier. During the year trade receivables Fair value estimation

amounting to RO NIL was written off directly.
i The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of icss than one year arc
Impairment loss movement for the years are as follows assumed to approximate te theit fir values. The fair value of the amount due to Holding company

Movement in ECL provision — trade receivables and cannol be estimated as it does not carry interest and has no fixed repayment terms.

amounts due from related parties 2019 2018

ROMO0 ROG0 36. Approval of financial statements
At 1 Jasuary 024 1,394
Impact of IFRS 9 adiustment al initial application . 1,270 The financial statements were approvad by the Board and authorised for issue on 27 February 2020.
Moverent during the year 559 360
3,583 3,024

Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capita! are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate retuen to shareholders,

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain creditor and market
confidence and Lo sustain future develepment of the business. The capital structure of the Company
comprises share capital, reserves, retained earnings and shareholders’ funds. The Compeny is not
subject ta external impused capital requirements.
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